Public Document Pack

Call-in Sub-Committee (of the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Board)

Agenda

Date: Monday, 22 February 2021

Time: 3.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting - Zoom Committee Meeting
with Public Access via YouTube

Distribution:

Councillors: Steve Smith, Richard Eddy, John Goulandris, Claire Hiscott, Mark Weston, Gary Hopkins,
Geoff Gollop, Margaret Hickman and Donald Alexander

Issued by: Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Coordinator
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS

Tel: 0117 903 6898

E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Friday 12th February 2021

www.bristol.gov.uk



mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Call In Sub-Committee (of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) - Agenda

Agenda

1. Confirmation of Chair

Please note: the October 2020 OSMB report has been included in these papersto  (Pages 4 - 5)
provide clarity on the Call-in membership and chairing arrangements.

2. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 6 - 8)
3. Declarations of Interest

To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors. They are asked to
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Please note that the Register of Interests is available at
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/councillors/members-interests-gifts-and-hospitality-

register

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4. Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item.

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5pm on 16" February 2021.

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 19th
February 2021.



https://www.bristol.gov.uk/councillors/members-interests-gifts-and-hospitality-register
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/councillors/members-interests-gifts-and-hospitality-register
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Call In Sub-Committee (of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) - Agenda

Call-in of Cabinet Decision

a)
b)
c)

d)

Procedure at the meeting
Call-in Proforma

Cabinet Decision Record

Please note: a signed copy of this form will be uploaded in due
course.

Cabinet Report - Housing Revenue Account Budget Report

Officer Response to Call-in

This document is to follow.

(Pages 9 - 10)
(Page 11)
(Pages 12 - 15)
(Pages 16 - 18)

(Pages 19 - 76)




Agenda Item 1

Overview and Scrutiny

Management Board
5t October 20

Report of:  Tim O’Gara — Director of Legal and Democratic Services

Title: Call In Sub Committee — Membership and Chairing

Ward: N/A

Officer Presenting Report: Lucy Fleming, Head of Democratic Engagement

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 922 2483

Recommendation
That the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board note the reduced size of the Call in Sub

Committee from seven to six Members and approve the schedule of Chairs for the remainder of
the Municipal Year, which will rotate by political party.

The significant issues in the report are:

The proposed revision to the chairing arrangements of the Call in Sub Committee of the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board.

www.bristol.gov.uk




Name of Meeting - Report

1. Summary

Where non-executive Councillors have evidence which suggests that the Executive did not take a
decision in accordance with the principles set out in Article 14 (Decision Making) of part 2 of the
Constitution, they may ask the Proper Officer to ‘call in’ the decision for scrutiny. If the requirements
are met the Proper Officer will call in the item and within five working days of the request give notice
as to the date on which the call in will be considered by a Call in Sub Committee. Additional details
about the process can be found at Appendix A — ‘What is Call in and How Does it Operate?’

Following changes to the political makeup of the Council, with effect from 4th October 2020 the
Committee will reduce from a membership of seven to six (non executive Members), with the
proportionality being; three Labour, one Conservative, one Green and one Liberal Democrat. The
names of the Members to serve on each Call in Sub-Committee will be determined by the Whips.
The Chair of the Call in Sub Committee will be elected at the start of each meeting. From 4t October
20 until 6t May 21, it is recommended that the Chair rotates between political parties in the following
order;

Conservative

Labour

Green

Labour

Liberal Democrat
Labour (and so on)

2. Consultation
a)Internal

The Whips and Councillor Gollop, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board.
b)External

Not applicable.

3. Public Sector Equality Duties

Not applicable.

Page 5



Agenda Item 2

www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet

Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-meetings

Covid-19: changes to how we hold public meetings

Following changes to government rules, we will use video conferencing to hold all public meetings,
including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made)
and scrutiny.

Councillors will take decisions remotely and the meetings will be broadcast live on YouTube.

Members of the public who wish to present their public forum in person during the video conference
must register their interest by giving at least two clear working days’ notice to Democratic Services of
the request. To take part in the meeting, you will be required to register for a Zoom account, so that
Democratic Services is able to match your named Zoom account to your public forum submission, and
send you the password protected link and the instructions required to join the Zoom meeting to make
your statement or ask your supplementary question(s).

As part of our security arrangements, please note that we will not permit access to the meeting if
your Zoom credentials do not match your public forum submission credentials. This is in the
interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all attending or observing proceedings
via a live broadcast.

Please note: Members of the public will only be invited into the meeting for the duration of their
submission and then be removed to permit the next public forum participant to speak.

Changes to Public Forum

Members of the public may make a written statement, ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published
on the Council’s website before the meeting. Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.
The following requirements apply:

e The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.

e The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

e Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. For copyright reasons,
we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles that may be attached to
statements.

e Your intention to attend the meeting must be received no later than two clear working days in
advance. The meeting agenda will clearly state the relevant public forum deadlines.



https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-meetings
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

www.bristol.gov.uk

By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee, published on the
website and within the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public
via publication on the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of
Information Act requests in the future.

We will try to remove personal and identifiable information. However, because of time constraints we
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Other committee papers may be placed on the
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.

During the meeting:

e Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.

e There will be no debate on statements or petitions.

e Public Forum will be circulated to the Committee members prior to the meeting and published on
the website.

e |If you have arranged with Democratic Services to attend the meeting to present your statement or
ask a question(s), you should log into Zoom and use the meeting link provided which will admit you
to the waiting room.

o The Chair will call each submission in turn and you will be invited into the meeting. When you are
invited to speak, please make sure that your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would
like Members to consider. This will have the greatest impact.

e Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute, and you may need to be muted if you exceed your allotted time.

e |f there are a large number of submissions on one matter, a representative may be requested to
speak on the group’s behalf.

e |f you do not attend the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken your
statement will be noted by Members.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all virtual
public meetings including Full Council and Cabinet meetings are now broadcast live via the council's
webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting will be broadcast (except where there are confidential or
exempt items).

Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment

You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular

meeting. ®
= _ i )



https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UChYwQT6nK-mPU3K8bYsZ17g

NOTE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
ON THE PURPOSE OF THIS MEETING

This meeting is to consider a Call-in for scrutiny from Councillors Steve Smith,
Richard Eddy, John Goulandris, Claire Hiscott and Mark Weston of the Cabinet’s
decision on the Housing Revenue Account Budget Proposals for 2021/22 -
Recommendation no’s 7 & 8 because they believe that they have evidence to
suggest that Cabinet did not take that decision in accordance with Article 14
(decision taking) of the Council's constitution.

Please note that this meeting cannot alter the Cabinet’s decision. This is a
matter for Cabinet alone.

The function of the Call In Sub-Committee is to review the way in which Cabinet
reached its decision and it will come to one of the following 3 conclusions;

- to take no further action

- to refer the matter back to the Cabinet - with issues (to be detailed in the
minute) for Cabinet to consider before taking a final decision.

- to refer the matter to Full Council for a wider debate (NB : Full Council may
decide, either to take no further action or to refer the matter back to
Cabinet with specific recommendations for them to consider prior to
decision taking)

You are welcome to make public forum submissions at this meeting but please
bear in mind that the purpose of the meeting is to review the way in which
Cabinet reached its decision and as set out in the notice of Call In. It is therefore
a process review meeting.

Please note: If the Panel decides to refer the decision back to the Cabinet with
recommendations or indeed, if the Panel refers the decision to Council, for a
wider debate by councillors, then either of these could be a more appropriate
forum for you to make further submissions.

Page 8



Agenda Item 5

Call-in Sub-Committee
(of the Overview and Scrutiny Management

Board)
22" February 2021

Title: Call-in of the Cabinet’s Decision on recommendations 7 & 8 of the
Housing Revenue Account Budget Proposals for 2021/22

Ward: ALL

Summary:

To review the decision (taken Wednesday, 3rd February 2021 Cabinet) as a result of the matter
having been called in by the Proper Officer on behalf of the Council.

Recommendation:
The Panel must decide either:

a.

to take no further action

to refer the matter back to Cabinet -with issues (to be detailed in the minute) for Cabinet to
consider before taking a final decision.

to refer the matter to Full Council for a wider debate (NB : Full Council may decide either to take
no further action or to refer the matter back to Cabinet with specific recommendations for them
to consider prior to decision taking.)

www.bristol.gov.uk




Call-in Sub-Committee - Report

Appendices:

A — Procedure at the meeting.
B — Call-in Proforma

C — Cabinet Decision Record

D — Cabinet Report

E — Officer Response

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

Cabinet report dated 23" February 2021

Page 10



Agenda Item 5a

Appendix A

CALL IN SUB-COMMITTEE - PROCEDURE AT MEETING.

1. The Chair explains the purpose of the meeting and the decisions which
the Sub-Committee is able to take.

2. Callers-in present their case, explaining reasons for calling in Cabinet’s
decision.

3. Members of the Panel ask questions and seek clarification from the
callers in.

4, The Strategic/ Service Director and Mayor/Cabinet member will explain
the background to the decision.

5. Members of the Panel ask questions and seek clarification from the
Mayor/ Cabinet member and Strategic/Service Director.

6. General debate during which Panel members may ask questions of both
parties with a view to helping them make up their mind.

7. The Chair sums up and identifies the key issues arising out of the debate.

8. The Panel resolves either;
° to take no further action
° to refer the matter back to Cabinet -with issues (to be detailed in

the minute) for Cabinet to consider before taking its final decision.

° to refer the matter to Full Council for a wider debate (NB: Full
Council may decide either to take no further action or to refer the
matter back to Cabinet with specific recommendations for them
to consider prior to decision taking)

Page 11



Agenda Item 5b

Bristol City Council

Call in of a decision taken by the Executive

Overview and Scrutiny Rule OSR17 states that where non-executive councillors have
evidence which suggests that the executive did not take the decision in accordance with
Article 14 (Decision Making) of part 2 of the Council’s Constitution, at least five non-
executive members may ask the proper officer to call-in a decision for scrutiny using the
appropriate call-in form (attached). The decision making principles in article 14 are set out
below and the members seeking the call-in should identify those principles in Article 14 of
the Constitution which they believe have been breached.

Proportionality The action must be proportionate to the desired outcome.

Due consultation (@) It may be appropriate to consult with communities, businesses and other
third parties who have an interest in the matter. In some cases minimum
consultation requirements are prescribed in law.

(b) The council is required to act in the interests of the public as a whole so the
decision desired by consultees may not necessarily be the right decision to

make.
Taking of professional Professional advice from the council’s legal, financial and other specialist staff is
advice from others always essential for the executive.

Respect for human rights | The Human Rights Act 1998 is of great importance to local authorities. Any
decision which may breach and article or protocol of the Act should be subjected
to “anxious scrutiny” and professional advice sought.

A presumption in favour |Decisions taken by executive members or officers should be taken under this
of openness presumption. Access to material contributing to a decision should be made
available to anyone with a legitimate interest in it unless this would involve
disclosing exempt or confidential information

Clarity of aims and Decision makers must be clear as to what they are seeking to achieve and why.
desired outcomes This will often require thoughtful consideration of other options.

Due regard to public The Equalities Act 2010 requires that all decisions taken must have due regard to
sector equality aims the need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other

conduct which is prohibited under the Act; (b) advance equality of opportunity
between equality groups and (c) foster good relations between equality groups.

Procedure

1. Where a decision is made by the executive or a key decision is made by an officer with
delegated authority from the executive, or under joint arrangements the decision will
come into force, and may then be implemented on the expiry of five clear working
days from the date the decision was taken unless the decision is called-in. The 5 clear
working days run from 8.30am on the day after the decision was taken and exclude
any day when the Council’s offices ar&%hdjé ZII_JZ: weekends and bank holidays.




2. The proper officer will first satisfy themselves that the following requirements have

been met:

(i) the call-in notice has been received within the prescribed timescales

(ii) the decision taker’s decision has been properly identified and described

(iii) the members seeking the call-in have identified those principles of Article 14

of the constitution which they believe have been breached.

3. If the requirements are met the proper officer will call-in the item and within five
working days of the request, give notice as to the date on which the call-in will be
considered by a Call-In Sub Committee, which will be held within 5 days of the request
for call-in being approved by the Proper Officer. If a debate at Full Council is decided
by the Call-In Sub-Committee then this will be held within ten days at an extraordinary
meeting of the full Council or at the Lord Mayor’s discretion.

The following points relate to established working practice in relation to call in:

e The call-in procedure should not be abused or used to unduly delay decisions or slow
down the process of decision making

e Members should try to avoid calling in matters which are already within the agreed
work programme of a scrutiny commission

e To give notice of a call in, councillors must use the form attached to these notes. It
should be detached and completed and send to the Proper Officer (i.e. Tim O’Gara,
Service Director — Legal and Democratic Services.) Members are strongly
recommended to deliver their notice in person, or to email the form

e The form must be filled in fully - members must explain in detail how in their view,
the decision taken breaches any of the principles in Article 14 of the Constitution.
They must also be meticulous in identifying which part of any executive decision they
are referring to. Failure to do so could result in the suspension of a complex decision,
when in fact the callers in only wish to object to a small part of it.

e The Proper Officer will review all call ins and may reject or refer back to members,
any call in notice which does not fully meet the requirements specified in the
Constitution

Early submission of a call in is advised. This will maximise the time available to the
executive to formulate a response and for arrangements to be made for appropriate
representatives of an executive to attend the Call In Panel which will discuss the
decision called in.

Page 13



Bristol City Council

Request to the Proper Officer to call in an Executive Decision

This form should only be completed after the accompanying guidance notes have been read. It should be
completed fully in order that the Proper Officer has an adequate basis upon which to call in the decision.

Please return the call-in form to Tim O’Gara, Proper Officer
Email Tim.OGara@bristol.gov.uk

Names of the non-
executive members
requesting the proper
officer to call the
decision in :

Cllr Steve Smith

Clir Richard Eddy
Clir John Goulandris
Cllr Claire Hiscott
Cllr Mark Weston

Date and time request
submitted :

Tuesday, 9t February 2021
16.30

Details of Executive (or
officer acting under
delegated power)

Cllr Craig Cheney — Designated Deputy Mayor for Finance, Governance &
Performance

Decision number and
date

Agenda item 5
Wednesday, 3™ February 2021

Description of decision
or part of decision

(if you only quote the
subject then everything
in the decision could be
suspended pending the
Call In Sub meeting)

Housing Revenue Account Budget Proposals for 2021/22

Cabinet:

7. Authorises the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration, in
consultation with the Section 151 Officer and the Cabinet Member
for Finance, Governance and Performance (with appropriate legal
and procurement advice), to implement the HRA Development
Programme set out in Appendix A3 giving authority to:

e Commit funding of up to £103.7m on the HRA Development
programme;

e Allocate funding between the ‘developer-led’, ‘land-led’, property
conversions and estate regeneration programmes as appropriate;
e agree sites for the programme;

¢ agree financial expenditure and tenure;

¢ authorise bidding and accept Homes England grant where
deemed applicable;

¢ appoint all contractors and professional services associated with
the proposed development through a procurement compliant
process, subject to progress reports on the HRA Development
Programme being brought back to Cabinet on a quarterly basis; and

8. approve deals for ‘developer-led’ schemes with all deals to be
reported as part of the Officer Executive Decision process.

Page 14



mailto:Tim.OGara@bristol.gov.uk

State which principle(s) in
Article14 of the
Constitution you believe
the executive has
breached and set out any
evidence to support this.

Proportionality

It is clearly unreasonable to relax the requirements, rules or regulations
governing tendering processes when contracting with potential developer(s).
These standard stipulations are normally strictly applied to every other
contract/tender for goods or services and set at predetermined threshold levels.

A presumption in favour of openness

The move to devolve or delegate decision-making for significant HDP [indicative
budget of £40m] contracts and, with particular reference to ‘developer-led’
schemes to a senior officer -without scrutiny oversight - is not conducive to
transparency in decision-making nor is it usually regarded as an example of good
practice for obvious reasons (i.e undue influence, bias etc). Even consultation
with political leads before tendering does not provide sufficient safeguards due
to recognised imbalances in specialist knowledge and experience. Such
arrangements have failed local taxpayers in the past — as highlighted by external
auditors in their recent review of governance in respect of Bristol City Council
subsidiaries.

Due regard to public sector equality aims

Delegated authority in procurement is also stated as a positive move in the EqlA
as this will result in greater efficiencies and expedite work programmes without
the need for ‘additional approvals’. This ignores the important role of multiple
auditing layers or trails in procurement processes.

Signed by Councillors

Page 15




Agenda Item 5c

Decision Recording Form

Decision determined at Cabinet meeting on 3 February 202

Cabinet members present:

Marvin Rees, Mayor

Councillor Nicola Beech, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Spatial Planning and City Design
Councillor Craig Cheney, Designated Deputy Mayor with responsibility for Finance, Governance and
Performance

Councillor Asher Craig, Deputy Mayor with responsibility for Communities, Equalities and Public Health
Councillor Kye Dudd, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Transport, Energy & New Green Deal
Councillor Helen Godwin, Cabinet Member for Women, Families and Homes (Lead Member For Children’s
Services)

Councillor Helen Holland, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Adult Social Care

Councillor Steve Pearce, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Waste, Commercialisation and
Regulatory Services

Councillor Afzal Shah, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Climate, Ecology and Sustainable Growth

Apologies:
Councillor Anna Keen, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Education and Skills

Deadline date for Call-in referral 12 February 2021

(a) | Subject: Housing Revenue Account Budget proposals for 2021/2022
(agenda item 5)

(b) | Ward: All Wards

(c) | Declarations of interest:

None

(d) | Decision taken

Cabinet endorsed the following recommendations for approval at Full Council:
1. Approved:




democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

e No increase to dwelling rents for 2021/22.

e The 1-year Revenue budget for 2021/22 and 5-year Capital Programme 2021/22 —
2025/26, as detailed in Appendix A1, noting here is no additional borrowing
requirement before 2024/25.

e The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) as shown in the 1-year Revenue
budget and 5-year Capital Programme in Appendices Al and A2

e The Housing Development Programme as shown in the 1-year Revenue budget
and 5-year Capital Programme in Appendices Al and Appendix A3

e Anin-year draw-down from the HRA General Reserve to fund planned HIP works
carried forward from 2020/21 due to Covid restrictions.

e Approve the delayed draw-down in 2021/22 from general fund reserve, of an
agreed 2020/21 budget amendment (£100k) which was previously approved by
Full Council Feb 2020, due to delays during the pandemic. This reserve was set
aside to finance training for Housing and Landlord Services that would provide in-
house skills to retrofit energy efficiency measures to council homes.

2. Authorised the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Finance, Governance and Performance, to set
service charges in line with the anticipated and actual cost of delivery.

Cabinet:

3. Approved transfer of the CCTV reserves to a separate reserve (£0.419m).

4. Approved the acceptance and spending of the Social Housing Decarbonisation
Demonstrator grant of £1.29m.

5. Authorised the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Women, Families and Homes, the Section 151
officer and the monitoring officer to take all steps necessary to procure and
award contracts during 2021/22 to deliver both the capital and revenue
investment plans detailed in Appendices Al and A2 notwithstanding that
individual contracts may exceed the key decision threshold.

6. Authorised the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Women, Families and Homes to submit appropriate
funding applications (including for the carbon retrofit projects), to agree
associated grant terms/conditions, and if successful to progress to delivery of
these projects via compliant procurement routes.

7. Authorised the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration, in consultation
with the Section 151 Officer and the Cabinet Member for Finance, Governance
and Performance (with appropriate legal and procurement advice), to implement
the HRA Development Programme set out in Appendix A3 giving authority to:

e Commit funding of up to £103.7m on the HRA Development programme;

e Allocate funding between the ‘developer-led’, ‘land-led’, property conversions
and estate regeneration programmes as appropriate;

e agree sites for the programme;




democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

e agree financial expenditure and tenure;

e authorise bidding and accept Homes England grant where deemed applicable;

e appoint all contractors and professional services associated with the proposed
development through a procurement compliant process, subject to progress
reports on the HRA Development Programme being brought back to Cabinet on a
guarterly basis; and

8. approved deals for ‘developer-led’ schemes with all deals to be reported as part of
the Officer Executive Decision process.

9. Noted that all delegated authority given above will follow the Officer executive
decision making procedure and that all such decisions will be published.

(e) | Exempt Information?

No

(f) | Decision made in exempt session?

No

(g) | Additional information at the meeting/documents taken into account:

1. Equalities Impact Assessment
2. 2 public forum questions and 7 statements

(h) | Reason for decision:

As set out in the report.

Designated Deputy Mayor with responsibility for Finance, Governance and Performance




Agenda ltem 5d S 7

Decision Pathway — Report

PURPOSE: Key decision
MEETING: Cabinet

DATE: 26 January 2021

TITLE HRA Budget proposals for 2021/2022

Ward(s) |All
Author: Sarah Spicer Job title: Business Innovation Manager
Cabinet lead: Clir Craig Cheney Executive Director lead: Stephen Peacock

Proposal origin: BCC Staff

Decision maker: Cabinet Member
Decision forum: Cabinet

Purpose of Report:
The report seeks Cabinet’s endorsement of the proposed 2021/22 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget, 5-year
capital plan and planned expenditure. It also seeks delegated authority to appoint all necessary contractors to

implement the delivery of these plans, including the Housing Investment Plan and HRA Development Programme
(new council homes).

Evidence Base:

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a separate ring-fenced account and covers all activities of BCC as landlord of
circa 26.8k housing stock. There are further 1.7k leasehold properties which have been sold under RTB, but which are
in blocks where the Council continues to maintain the common areas and the fabric of the building.

The Council has a duty to develop a balanced HRA budget for the next financial year, as well as a sustainable long-
term business plan, which takes into account both the capital investment needs of its stock and the revenue costs of
managing and maintaining it. A one-year revenue budget for 2021/22 and a 5-year capital programme 2021/22 —
2025/26 are being presented for approval. The budget has been set to ensure that the HRA can deliver: its day to day
service provision, service improvements, essential repairs, maintenance and improvements to the housing stock; and
a development programme with the potential to develop up to 571 new council homes over the next 5 years.

Over the next year it is proposed to carry out a thorough review of the HRA to produce an updated 30-year business
plan. The focus of this work will be to improve the service that tenants receive, implement the outputs of the
Moving Forward Together change programme, improve the quality of our estates and housing stock, continue to
address the challenges of the climate emergency and the need for more affordable housing, and ensure the long
term financial sustainability of the HRA. This work will inform future decisions about capital investment, service
delivery and rent policy. As a result some of the assumptions in the 5-year capital programme are subject to change.

Revenue Income

The main sources of income for the HRA are the rent and services charges paid by tenants and leaseholders. To date
BCC has retained social rent levels, set in line with the national Rent Standard although social rents in Bristol are
significantly lower than market and Affordable Rents.

Although the Rent Policy and Rent Standard allows Local Authorities to increase rents by up to CPI plus 1% for
2021/22, in view of the current economic conditions, the impact of pandemic and the hardship suffered

by people in need it is proposed that the Council will freeze rents for existing tenants for the coming year,
effective from April 2021.

To maintain the existing level of service will require an accelerated use of HRA reserve in the short term and the

1
Version May 2019 P ag e 1 9



identification of service efficiencies over the next year.

The HRA forecasts revenue income of £122.1m for 2021/22 compromised of:
e £113.5m rental income - of this a percentage will be lost as no income is received while properties are void
(empty) -£1.2m
e £9.0m service charges (based on actual costs, plus an inflationary uplift)
e £0.8m in charges for other assets, including garages and shops, and interest on balances.

Revenue Expenditure
The first priority for HRA expenditure is to make service provision for council tenants: estates and housing services;
and repairs, maintenance and improvements to council housing. For 2021/22 this includes:
e £33.9m for responsive repairs and maintenance, including compliance safety programmes
e £31.8m to deliver supervision and management functions
e Up to £0.8m for Moving Forward Together (part of the £1.4m approved by Cabinet June 2020) to test and roll
out a new operating model during 2021 that will deliver improved services that meet residents’ priorities.
e £1.7m for an expanded programme of planned improvements and fire safety, (included in Appendix A2) to
ensure work that could not be delivered in 2020/21 due to Covid-19 is carried out during 2021/22. This is also
to be funded from the HRA General Reserve.

Capital Programme
The 5 year Capital Programme consists of:

e £216.1m Housing Investment Programme for maintaining and improving the existing stock as set out in
Appendix A2. This includes £2.3m to match fund income of £1.29m from the Social Housing Decarbonisation
Demonstrator grant to deliver an energy efficiency pilot, testing a whole house retrofit scheme to 40 homes,
to allow us to learn lessons, and potentially roll out the scheme to more homes as part of our commitment
for all home to be net zero carbon by 2030 and more affordable to heat

e £103.7m HRA Development Programme of delivering new council homes as set out in Appendix A3.

e £2.5m HRA IT Infrastructure, which is for continuous improvement and maintenance of the HRA systems

The 5-year Capital Programme is financed through

e £164.2m Major Repairs Allowance, which is exclusively used to fund the Housing Investment Programme
(HIP)

e £72.6m Revenue funding including use of reserves. 87% of this is used to fund the HIP, with the remainder
being used for the HRA Development Programme and the HRA infrastructure.

e £34.9m Unapplied Capital receipts used wholly on the HRA Development Programme

e £39.3m Capital Receipts (including receipts from the first tranche of shared ownership homes) and grant
funding. This is wholly used on the HRA Development Programme.

e £11.3m prudential borrowing required in years 4 and 5, i.e. 2024/25 — 2025/26 for the financing of the HRA
Development Programme.

Reserves

In last year’s budget the decision was taken to amalgamate all the HRA reserves into one general reserve. However
for transparency it is now recommended that the CCTV reserves is held separately as this is part of tenants’ service
charges and is ring-fenced to the CCTV charges.

Business Plan

The decision not to increase rents in 2021/22 will result in an additional £1.8m being drawn down from reserves to
maintain existing services levels and planned levels of maintenance and investment in stock. There will be new
pressures and spending requirements over coming years. These include new regulations resulting from the Social
Housing White paper and Building Regulations, carbon reduction targets and estate regeneration. These will be
explored further during 2021/22, as we review our Business Plan and consult with key stakeholders to develop new
long-term plans and priorities.

Version May 2019 Pag e 20



Appendix Al contains further details regarding the proposed budget, detailing income and expenditure.

Appendix A2 provides information regarding the Housing Investment Plan, outlining the expenditure required to
maintain and invest in existing homes.

Appendix A3 provides additional information regarding the HRA Development Programme. It outlines a programme
to deliver new council homes through the HRA, between 2021/22 to 2025/26, through a mixture of new build and
refurbishment/conversion opportunities. These homes will be comprised of both social rent and shared ownership
and will help replace stock loss through the RTB.

Cabinet Member / Officer Recommendations:
That Cabinet endorses the following recommendations for approval at Full Council:
1. Approve:
e Noincrease to dwelling rents for 2021/22.
e The 1-year Revenue budget for 2021/22 and 5-year Capital Programme 2021/22 — 2025/26, as
detailed in Appendix A1, noting here is no additional borrowing requirement before 2024/25.
e The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) as shown in the 1-year Revenue budget and 5-year Capital
Programme in Appendices Al and A2
e The Housing Development Programme as shown in the 1-year Revenue budget and 5-year Capital
Programme in Appendices Al and Appendix A3
e An in-year draw-down from the HRA General Reserve to fund planned HIP works carried forward
from 2020/21 due to Covid restrictions
e Approve the delayed draw-down in 2021/22 from general fund reserve, of an agreed 2020/21 budget
amendment (£100k) which was previously approved by Full Council Feb 2020, due to delays during
the pandemic. This reserve was set aside to finance training for Housing and Landlord Services that
would provide in-house skills to retrofit energy efficiency measures to council homes.
2. Authorise the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Finance, Governance and Performance, to set service charges in line with the anticipated and actual cost of
delivery.

That Cabinet:

3. Approves transfer of the CCTV reserves to a separate reserve (£0.419m).

4. Approves the acceptance and spending of the Social Housing Decarbonisation Demonstrator grant of £1.29m.

5. Authorises the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Women, Families and Homes, the Section 151 officer and the monitoring officer to take all steps necessary to
procure and award contracts during 2021/22 to deliver both the capital and revenue investment plans
detailed in Appendices Al and A2 notwithstanding that individual contracts may exceed the key decision
threshold.

6. Authorise the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Women, Families and Homes to submit appropriate funding applications (including for the carbon retrofit
projects), to agree associated grant terms/conditions, and if successful to progress to delivery of these
projects via compliant procurement routes.

7. Authorises the Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer
and the Cabinet Member for Finance, Governance and Performance (with appropriate legal and procurement
advice), to implement the HRA Development Programme set out in Appendix A3 giving authority to:

e Commit funding of up to £103.7m on the HRA Development programme;

e Allocate funding between the ‘developer-led’, ‘land-led’, property conversions and estate
regeneration programmes as appropriate;

e agree sites for the programme;

e agree financial expenditure and tenure;

e authorise bidding and accept Homes England grant where deemed applicable;

e appoint all contractors and professional services associated with the proposed development through
a procurement compliant process, subject to progress reports on the HRA Development Programme
being brought back to Cabinet on a quarterly basis; and

8. approve deals for ‘developer-led’ schemes with all deals to be reported as part of the Officer Executive
Decision process.

Version May 2019 Pag e 2?2l



Notes that all delegated authority given above will follow the Officer executive decision making procedure
and that all such decisions will be published

Corporate Strategy alignment:

1. The HRA Business Plan and Budget proposals ensure a quality housing service contributing to the overall
corporate objectives particularly around “fair and inclusive” (decent homes that people can afford) and
“wellbeing” (healthy and more resilient communities).

City Benefits:

1. Fifteen percent of housing in Bristol is owned and managed by Bristol City Council, therefore decisions about the
HRA budget impact directly on a significant number of households, as well as contributing to delivery of
objectives in the Council’s Corporate and Housing strategies.

2. Investment will help to safeguard the value of HRA assets; positively impact on the well-being of residents; and
ensure health and safety obligations are complied with.

3. The proposal will facilitate the supply of additional affordable housing which will be of benefit to the whole City.
Housing is at the heart of the Council’s drive to improve the quality of life for residents and to create thriving
communities and attractive places where people positively choose to live. Housing should provide a springboard
to achieving a high quality of life and create the opportunity for all to thrive in mixed communities of their choice.
Creating a mixed and balanced community with a strong sense of place and liveable environment, can help
benefit mental and physical health, social interaction and security. It will also help create greater equality of
opportunity and quality of life. The lack of affordable housing causes homelessness and the people who are owed
a homelessness duty by the Council are disproportionately young people, disabled people, BAME people and lone
parents who are mainly women.

Consultation Details: Consultation is not required

Background Documents:
Policy statement on rents for social housing
Decision Statement: Rent Standard 2020

Revenue Cost £122.1m Source of Revenue Funding |Rents, other income and HRA balances.
Capital Cost £322.3m Source of Capital Funding Funded within the HRA.
One off cost [ Ongoing cost L1  |Saving Proposal [J Income generation proposal []

Required information to be completed by Financial/Legal/ICT/ HR partners:

1. Finance Advice: The Council has a duty to agree a balanced HRA budget for the next financial year, as well as
maintaining a sustainable long term business plan, which takes account of capital investment needs in its stock and
the revenue costs of managing and maintaining it. The HRA budget is ringfenced and must be accounted for
separately from the General Fund. It is prudent for the HRA to maintain an appropriate level of reserves.

There are significant financial risks to the sustainability of the HRA going forward as set out in the report, particularly
with regard to maintaining an aging stock that requires significant investment to meet modern standards and tenants
expectations and meeting the demand for housing hence the need to maximise the income generated which is reliant
on rent increases .

The 5 year capital programme includes the overall quantum of housing for developer led schemes. The delegation
for developer led schemes is for a total budget of £40m for 2021/22, this is based on indicative figures per site which
are subject to change.

No increase to rents means that the inflationary increases in expenditure and to maintain the existing level of service
will have to be managed by the use of reserves. This erosion of reserves impacts on both the amount of cash
available to invest in homes and/or services, as well as increasing the requirement for borrowing within the HRA.
This is illustrated in the 5 year capital programme, no additional borrowing is currently anticipated until 2024/25

4
Version May 2019 P age 22


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/direction-on-the-rent-standard-from-1-april-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/consultation-on-a-new-rent-standard-from-2020

when £11.3m of borrowing will be required, by which point the reserves would have been reduced to the minimum
level of £21m.

Assumptions have been made with regards to future Right to Buys and capital receipts, if these assumptions are not
realised then it will also have an impact on the financing of the capital programme. Also, in allocating income to the
individual financial years the timing of external receipts remains uncertain and so amounts have been allocated to
individual financial years in proportion to scheme expenditure.

Please see Appendix Al for detailed financial analysis on the proposed budget.

Finance Business Partner: Wendy Welsh, Finance Manager 13t January 2021

2. Legal Advice: The Council is required to maintain, and review annually, a Housing Revenue Account in accordance
with the provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and directions issued thereunder.

The report seeks endorsement of the proposed budget for approval by Full Council, including its proposed revenue
and capital spending plans, and also delegated authority for the Executive Director, Growth & Regeneration to
implement those plans, (as summarised in the appendices) including all procurement activities, without further
reference to Cabinet and notwithstanding that individual contracts may exceed £500k.

To ensure the implementation of the programme is lawful, all procurement and contracting activities must comply
with the appropriate Procurement Regulations and the councils own procurement rules.

Officers must also ensure the programme remains compliant with the Council’s budget and policy framework.

The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government issued a Direction on the Rent Standard 2019
which sets out how rents are to be calculated from April 2020.

Legal Team Leader: Eric Andrews, Team Leader Legal, 05t Jan 2021

3. Implications on IT: IT Services continue to work with housing colleagues to help define and deliver operating
efficiencies through the use of a digital transformation approach. These budgetary recommendations are not
anticipated to impact IT Services

IT Team Leader: Simon Oliver, Director - Digital Transformation, 14t Dec 2020

4. HR Advice: There are no HR implications evident

HR Partner: Celia Williams, HR Business Partner — Growth and Regeneration,4th Jan 2021

EDM Sign-off Stephen Peacock 2" Dec 2020
Cabinet Member sign-off Clir Cheney and Clir Godwin 7t Dec 2020
For Key Decisions - Mayor’s Mayor 18t Jan 2021
Office sign-off

Appendix A — Further essential background / detail on the proposal YES
A1 - Budget and MTFP

A2 —HIP

A3— Development programme

Appendix B — Details of consultation carried out - internal and external NO

Appendix C — Summary of any engagement with scrutiny NO

Appendix D — Risk assessment NO

Appendix E — Equalities screening / impact assessment of proposal YES
Appendix F — Eco-impact screening/ impact assessment of YES
Appendix G - Financial Advice NO

Appendix H — Legal Advice NO

Appendix | — Exempt Information NO

Version May 2019 P ag e 2 3



Appendix J — HR advice

NO

Appendix K- ICT

NO

Version May 2019

Page 24




Appendix Al - The 2021/22 Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget and
5 yr Capital Programme 2021/22 - 2025/26

1. Executive Summary

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a separate ring-fenced account and covers all activities of BCC as landlord
of circa 26.8k housing stock. In addition there are 1.7k leasehold properties which have been sold under RTB, but
which are in blocks where the Council continues to maintain the common areas and the fabric of the building.
The Council has a duty to develop a balanced HRA budget for the next financial year, as well as a sustainable long
term business plan, which takes into account both the capital investment needs of its stock and the revenue costs
of managing and maintaining it. This paper presents the proposed 2021/22 revenue budget and the 2021/22 —
2025/26 Capital Programme for approval.

2. One year budget

The one year budget focuses on three main areas of activity:
e repairing, maintaining and improving existing stock;

e providing services for council tenants and leaseholders; and
e continuation of provision of new affordable homes programme to maintain existing levels of stock

3. Assumptions for Budget 2021/22

The assumptions in setting the budget for 2021/22 are tabled below

Table 1 — Assumptions in the proposed budget for 2021/22

Item Assumption Impact

Rent Increase (Dwellings) 0% £1.7m rental income foregone in 2021-22 vs.
Rent Policy guidance.

Rent Increase (Non- 0% £0.03m rental income foregone in 2021-22

dwellings)

vs. Rent Policy guidance.

5% flexibility on formula
rents and 10% flexibility on
supported housing

To continue to uplift on
relets as per the Rent Policy

Rent flexibility can potentially generate an
additional £0.11m per year

Bad Debt Provision

£1.8m (1.5% of gross rental
income)

A 10% increase in bad debts (to 1.65%)
would increase losses by £0.18m

Void Rate

£1.2m 1.06%

A 10% increase in voids (to 1.17%) would
increase losses by £0.12m

Service Charges

Average £4.94 per week for
tenants, Average £14.11 per
week for Leaseholders

Service charges income is driven by service
costs, any increase in costs would result in a
matching increase in income

Average Stock Figure for
2021/22

26,898

Takes into account assumed right to buys
and additional units

Right to Buy's (RTB's)

Estimated number of
housing units lost through
RTB - 150 (0.6% of stock)

The level of RTB are projected to have a
downward trend in future years

Additional units - new build
& acquisitions

projected 182 units
delivered in 2021/22

Each new build unit provides a minimum
rental yield of circa £3,000 per annum to the
business plan

New
development/acquisitions

Each scheme will be
appraised for viability and
impact on overall business
plan

There is an expectation that any new
schemes will deliver a positive NPV

Page 25




HRA revenue balances from
2020/21 to be transferred to
reserves at year end

£3m projected underspend

This is based on forecast outturn position as

at P8

HRA Debt £250m For every £1m of additional borrowing, there
would be an increase in interest cost of
£0.02m per year.

Average cost of capital 4.47% Existing loans are currently all on a fixed

rate, fixed term basis and are not subject to

interest rate risk.

Debt Repayment

No provision made for

All debt is currently fixed rate / fixed term

repayment of debt debt. Any early repayment would attract a
penalty/premia in excess of any future
interest cost savings

Interest on balances 0.10% investment income would reduce by £0.01m

for every basis point reduction

Use of reserves to fund
capital programme

For 2021/22 there will be no
additional borrowing

Each £1m of borrowing would cost £0.02m

per year compared to utilising reserve.

4. Proposed Revenue Budget 2021/22

Table 2 shows the proposed draft HRA income and expenditure budget for 2020/21 against the forecast at P8

and the budget for 2021/22

Table 2
DRAFT HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2020/21 2020/21 2021/22
HRA Income and Expenditure BUDGET FORECAST BUDGET MVMENT
£000 P8 £'000 £'000

Income
Dwelling rents (113.3) (115.1) (113.5) (0.2)
Voids 1.2 1.1 1.2 0.0
Non-dwelling rents (0.9) (0.9) (0.9) 0.0
Charges for services and facilities (8.5) (8.7) (8.9) (0.4)
Other Income (0.0) (0.0) (0.0) 0.0
Total Income (121.4) (123.5) (122.1) (0.7)
Expenditure
Repairs & Maintenance 32.5 30.3 33.9 1.3
Supervision & Management 31.2 30.3 31.8 0.6
Special Services 9.7 9.6 9.8 0.1
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 1.2 1.2 1.2 (0.0)
Depreciation, Revenue Funded Capital, Interest Payable and

AN 46.8 48.8 45.5 (1.3)
Bad Debt Provision
Total Expenditure 121.4 120.2 122.1 0.7
(Surplus) / Deficit on the HRA 0.0 (3.3) 0.0 0.0
Opening balance on the HRA (87.5) (87.5) (90.4) (2.9)
(increase)/ decrease 0.0 (3.3) 0.0 0.0
Closing balance on the HRA (87.5) (90.8) (90.4) (2.9)
Minimum balance required (21.0) (21.0) (21.0) 0.0
Available for capital financing (66.5) (69.8) (69.4) (2.9)
required for capital financing 18.5 0.4 8.2 (10.3)
Closing balance on the HRA after RCCO (69.0) (90.4) (82.2) (13.2)

Page 26



Reasons for movement on the Revenue Budget between 2020/21 and 2021/22

Small variation on Dwelling rent is due to volume increases.

Net Service Charges: The 2021/22 budget is based on the planned expenditure on the properties.

Revenue repairs: The increase in budget for 2021/22 is partly due to the planned programmes in the HIP,
particularly the paint programme and also the increased costs of the joinery shop.

Management costs: have increased due to increases in establishment which include the new Estate
Regeneration team.

Depreciation: is the calculated level of basic re-investment needed to keep homes in reasonable repair
(calculated using lifecycles / element costs as per our investment planning approach). This sets the minimum
level of revenue funding to capital investment in homes to be applied in that year (or set aside in a separate
reserve account to be invested in homes in the future).
revenue, and an income item in capital.

5. Proposed HRA 5-Year Capital Programme 2021/22 - 2025/26

Depreciation is shown as an expenditure item in

The assumptions in this 5-year capital programme are subject to change as a result of the planned review of the
HRA to take place in 2021/22 and which will result an updated 30-year business plan.

The 5-year capital programme aims to deliver 571 new homes. Of these, 182 new homes (approximately 70:30
split between social rented and shared ownership homes) are proposed for completion in 2021/22, which will be
financed by a mix of unapplied capital reserves, pooled RTB receipts, Homes England grant funding and income
from the first tranche sale of Affordable Homes. Further details of the new build and acquisition programmes are
set out in Appendix A3.

The proposed budget also incorporates the Housing Investment Plan (HIP). The full detail of which can be found in
Appendix A2.

Table 3 shows the proposed draft HRA five year capital programme.

Table 3: Proposed Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26

Page 27

Housing Revenue Account - DRAFT Capital 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/2a | 2024/25 | 2025/26
Programme
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET TOTAL
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
HRA 1 |Planned Programme - Major Projects 30.4 33.7 29.9 23.1 19.0 136.1
HRA 2 |New Build & Land Enabling 64.8 25.8 8.5 4.6 0.0 103.7
HRA 3 |Building Maintenance & Improvement 14.9 16.6 16.1 16.2 16.1 79.9
HRA 4 |HRA Infrastructure 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 2.5
Total Capital Expenditure 110.6 76.6 55.0 444 35.7 322.3
Financing
Unapplied Capital Receipts 34.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 34.9
Capital Receipts & Grant Funding 23.9 10.6 3.1 1.7 0.0 39.3
Major Repairs Allowance / Depreciation (MRA) 40.4 30.0 30.6 31.2 31.9 164.2
RCCO (Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay) 11.4 35.9 21.2 4.0 0.0 72.6
Prudential Borrowing 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.4 3.8 11.3
Total Capital Income 110.6 76.6 55.0 444 35.7 322.3
NET HRA Capital Programme 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
New units to be delivered 182 320 49 20 0 571



The proposed Capital Programme consists of the Housing Investment Programme for maintaining and improving
the existing stock as set out in Appendix A2. This includes £2.3m to match fund income of £1.29m from the Social
Housing Decarbonisation Demonstrator grant to deliver an energy efficiency pilot, testing a whole house retrofit
scheme to 40 homes, to allow us to learn lessons, and potentially roll out the scheme to more homes as part of
our commitment for all home to be net zero carbon by 2030 and more affordable to heat. The HRA Development
Programme of delivering new council homes as set out in Appendix A3 and the HRA IT Infrastructure, which is for
continuous improvement and maintenance of the HRA systems.

Capital receipts: These are from the sale of council homes under the Right to Buy (RTB) to sitting tenants at a
discount. Sales for 2021/22 are forecast to be 150, with an average sale price after discount of £103k. The
receipts will be reinvested to build new council homes, enabling a greater percentage to be retained.

The forecast for useable receipts to be applied to fund the 2021/22 capital programme is £11.5m of ‘additional 1-
4-1 receipts’, used to fund 30% of the eligible costs from the new build programme in 2021/22. The remaining
receipts will be added to balances and carried forward to help support the capital programme in future years.

In 2018 the Government removed the HRA borrowing cap (a Government set limit determining how much money
could be borrowed). With the removal of the headroom cap on local authorities, has opened up the possibility of
an accelerated development programme. As part of the creation of a new 30-year business plan for the HRA an
evaluation will determine the optimum borrowing capacity that the Business Plan can support. This work will
inform the 2022/23 budgeting process.

6. Risks

The following risks, in Table 5, have been identified in relation to the proposed HRA budget for 2021/22.

Table 5 Risks with potential impact and mitigation

Risk

Potential impact

Mitigation

0% Rent increase

Delivering the exisiting level of
service may require additional
borrowing in future years

Service efficiencies; review of HRA and
creation of new 30-year business plan

Recruitment and retention of
staff

Unable to deliver planned
programme, potential additional
costs of outsourcing work

Review of market pay for key roles, to be
funded by efficiencies if required.

Pay award higher than
assumed 0% increase

Every additional 1% equates to
additional £359K cost

Cost control to ensure budget remains
within the resource envelope available

New contracts cost more than
assumed inflation

Reduced capacity to deliver
services, new homes, and
maintain current stock to the
required standard

Robust contract management

Failure of contractors

Impact on cost and delivery of
planned programme

Effective contract management and
procurement framework

Bad debt higher than budget
assumed and impact of
Universal Credit

A 10% increase in Bad Debts (to
1.65%) would increase losses by
£0.18m. If tenants have reduction
in benefits may affect ability to
pay rent

Early intervention on rising arrears

Interest on debt repayments

Only applicable to non-hedged
debt (currently £NIL)

Minimum amount of hedging of debt
should be determined

Cost of retro fitting zero
carbon

Lack of capacity resulting in either
failure to hit target, or inability to
fund required

Robust business cases and procurement to
ensure the option delivering the best
Value for Money is selected

Page 28




repairs/maintenance

Delays in delivering new units

Reduced rental income.
Reputational risk of failing to
deliver target number of units

Robust management of development
partners to ensure adherence to
timescales. Penalty clauses within
development agreements to compensate
for late/non-delivery

Repayment of right to buy
receipts due to level of
development required and
limited time to use receipts

Loss of income to subsidise
delivery of new homes

Forward planning to match 1-4-1 receipts
against development programmes

Government policy changes

Not anticipated for 2021/22, but
may impact on 30 year business
plan

Business plan continually to be reviewed

Zero Carbon

No detailed costs available at
present

Options appraisal and strategy
development. Need to identify funding
source from Government

Brexit

Increased costs, arrears and bad
debts

Stringent budget setting/ management,
Value For Money Reviews of services,

robust procurement and contract
management, early intervention on rising
arrears

Reserves — As at the beginning of 2020/21 the HRA General Reserve balance was £87.5m (including the balance
on the CCTV reserve of £419K) the Capital Receipts Unapplied Reserves balance was £50.5m and a balance of
£3.6m was held on the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR).

Based on the forecast outturn position for 2020/21 as at P8, it is anticipated that a positive net movement of
£2.9m on the HRA General Reserve (which includes £3.2m contribution from 2020/21 forecast underspend), will
increase the balance to £90.4m and a negative net movement of £15.6m on the Capital Receipts Unapplied
Reserve will decrease the balance to £34.9m and a positive net movement on the Major Repairs Reserve of £7.3m
will increase the balance on the MRR to £10.9m.

The 2021/22 budget proposal assumes that £8.2m of the General HRA reserve, £34.9m from the Capital Receipts
Unapplied Reserve and the £10.9m form the MRR will be utilised in 2021/22 in order to fund the Capital
Programme. This would leave a balance on the General Reserve of £82.2m and £0m on the Capital Receipts
Unapplied Reserve and £0m on the MRR at 315t March 2022. The HRA will maintain a minimum level on the HRA
general reserves at £21m being the equivalent of 3 months cashflow. The application and use of reserves
supports the achievement of service delivery and improvements to housing stock.

Table 6 shows the movement on the HRA general reserve across the 5 year capital programme.

Table 6
HRA General Reserve 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Balance on the HRA Reserve (90.4) (82.2) (46.3) (25.0) (21.0)
Available for capital financing (69.4) (61.2) (25.3) (4.0) 0.0
required for capital financing 8.2 35.9 21.2 4.0 0.0
Minimum Balance required on HRA (21.0) (21.0) (21.0) (21.0) (21.0)
Closing balance on the HRA after RCCO (82.2) (46.3) (25.0) (21.0) (21.0)

Page 29



Appendix A2 HIP

Housing Investment Plan (HIP) — 2021/22

Introduction

This report and the accompanying appendix set out the capital and revenue budget for
investment in our homes for 2021/22, and includes a view of the requirement over the
following 4 years for information. There is also a list of key procurement projects that will
be needed to deliver the programme.

Assumptions are held in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan (in the 30
year HIP) around future investment requirements to meet the replacement dates and
condition needs of our homes. The repair and improvement of existing homes is planned
using comprehensive house condition and energy performance data, building element
life-cycles and accurate costings.

The quality of tenants’ homes is really important to them, and this is reflected in the
feedback from our 2019 resident satisfaction survey. We undertake in excess of 70,000
responsive repairs throughout the year to maintain standards in our homes, and we are
planning to replace and improve key building elements (roof, windows, etc.) to meet the
government’s Decent Homes Standard, as well as focussing on tenants’ priorities such as
affordable warmth, kitchens and health and safety.

Investment needs in our blocks of flats is high. The council owns and manages 62 high
rise blocks, and 477 other types of blocks of flats. We will be continuing our investment in
fire safety works and will ensure we meet any recommendations from the Grenfell
Inquiries, our own Fire Risk Assessments and independent checks. A significant
proportion of the proposed capital programme over the coming five years is for repairs
and improvement works to our high rise blocks — so that the flats continue to provide
safe, warm and modern homes.

Key points to note:

1] This programme is entirely funded from the ring fenced HRA.

2] The sheet details the capital and revenue budgets for 21/22 and a rolling 5 year
outlook based on stock condition and planned projects.

3] We have reviewed assumptions and forecasts within the HRA 30 year HIP for future
investment needs — re-evaluated replacement costs and lifecycles, and refined our
approach to long-term budget forecasting.

4] The legislative and investment framework for council housing is being transformed —
the recently published Social Housing White Paper, and the expected Fire Safety Bill and
Building Safety Bill will all place a greater emphasis on
e Tenants’ views and the need to incorporate them our plans
e Health and safety — especially in high rise blocks, but across all homes
e Improved standards — within the homes and also the communal spaces and the
external environment.

1
Page 30




Appendix A2 HIP

6] A new HRA Asset Management Strategy was agreed by Cabinet in December which
sets out how we will meet these challenges and make decisions on investment priorities.

7] We now have an active asset management tool (SHAPE) which considers a range of
business intelligence and assumptions, and indicates our better and poorer performing
homes. This insight allows us to target investment in homes with a sustainable future,
and identify those homes and areas where alterative options need to be explored to
improve the homes we offer, including estate regeneration.

8] Carbon neutral

The Investment Plan for 21/22 is based on working towards a target for all council homes
to achieve a minimum Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of C by 2030. In
response to the Mayor’s declaration of a Climate Emergency, and the aim for the city to
be net-zero carbon by 2030, we are developing options and costed plans which will
demonstrate how this target may achieved in our homes with government investment. As
a landlord, we are strategically placed to have a direct impact on carbon reductions,
however there is no allowance in the HRA Business Plan for the cost of decarbonisation
and funding this work is a challenge for all social housing providers. We have bid for
government grant to part fund decarbonisation retrofit works to 40 homes next year
which, if successful, will be a valuable learning experience. When we deliver the
programme of energy improvements our priority will be to focus on reducing fuel poverty,
and ensuring our tenants can afford to heat their home.

7] The City Leap Energy Partnership is a huge opportunity for council housing, bringing
investment, technology and creative solutions to meeting our energy reduction objectives.
Through the procurement process for City Leap we will engage and work through the
challenges to ensure tenants’ rights and standards are protected, fitting it in with our
asset strategies and ensure we achieve value for money and the best opportunities for
energy efficient homes.

2020/2021 budget summary

. 2020/ 2021

Capital / Revenue Budget
Capital £45,363,679
Revenue £35,894,089
Total £81,257,768

See below for detailed breakdown of all budgets and programmes.

2
Page 31



Appendix A2 HIP

Procurement Summary — 2021/2022

Much of the HIP is delivered via our in house workforce or existing contracts and
frameworks previously approved. Over the coming years some contracts will expire or
new contracts will need to be procured to deliver the works programmes arising from the
agreed HIP. The table below provides a summary of the required main procurement
activity during the year that requires approval. The request is for Cabinet to delegate
authority to the Service Director to approve these procurement projects as they are
prepared to go to tender, and in line with the Council’s approval process and delegated
levels of authority. The reports for approval will include costs and timescales, and an
Equalities Impact Assessment and ECO assessment will be undertaken and included for
each major procurement project.

Principles of Housing Repairs and Maintenance procurement and delivery strateqy
1. Co-ordinating works that go together; and sequencing works to prevent waste and

disruption

2. Reviewing / standardising product and material specifications based on good
practice, market engagement, tenant engagement and lessons learned, - and to
prevent maintenance costs ( reducing spares on vans, van sizes, travelling to
stores).

3. Strategic decision-making around supply and fit verses labour only contracts with
materials purchased directly where this can bring savings and standardisation

4. Best use of in-house workforce, supported by external contractors

Strategic advantage optimised around when to use internal workforce alongside

external contractors for the same works programmes.

Good customer standards built into contracts and for the internal teams

Strategy to mitigate risk of contractors entering administration

Maximising opportunities for Social value contributions

Governance of our approach through Project Boards and the planned programme
portfolio board.

g

© o N

Value for money will be achieved by:

a. Selecting appropriate procurement route to ensure competent contractors can
apply and are selected, and the length of contract to ensure contractor
commitment and a competitive price.

b. Using fit for purpose contract documentation prepared with legal services.

c. Involving tenants in setting standards of customer care and in contractor
selection process as an advisory panel

d. Nominated contract managers accountable for managing the quality and
delivery of the contract once let, and engaging tenants in core group meetings.

e. Select contractors who will have the resources and appropriately skilled
workforce to undertake the works, supporting our aims of right first time and
increasing customer satisfaction

Opportunities will be proactively explored for each contract type to include for the
provision of apprentices working in partnership with On-Site Bristol, where possible. The
Council will encourage the successful contractors to use local labour, social value being
part of the quality assessment process.

3
Page 32



ec abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Procurements required to start over the next financial year for Cabinet approval and delegation of authority, in

order the deliver the approved Housing Investment Plan.

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range

Estimated Annual contract

is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

Response Repairs contracts

Responsive Repairs and Relet works
across the housing stock. Most of the
Responsive Repairs and Relet works are
carried out by the in-house teams. This is
for contractor support for changes in
demand and or specialist contractors

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years will
be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£9,000,000 per annum
estimated expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£54,000,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Voids security to properties requiring
security across the housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years will
be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£80,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£480,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Scaffolding, to support responsive works
across the housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years will
be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the

£70,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£420,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third

4




7€ obed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to

Approach to Market

value) plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget
end of the party - but with other PCR compliant

framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Damp Proofing & Timber Treatment of
various homes across the housing stock

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years will
be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£400,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£2,400,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Mould & Ventilation, various homes
across the housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years will
be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£500,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£3,000,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Waste Removal and Clearance, various
homes across the housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years
will be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£450,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£2,700,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.




G¢ abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

Tree Management, various homes across

the housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years
will be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£40,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£240,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate

Chute Repairs, various blocks across the
housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years
will be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£200,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£1,200,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

External Cladding Repair, various blocks
across the housing stock.

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2
years. The 2 years
will be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

£50,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£300,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Welding repairs to metal gates, railings,
barriers to various homes across the

4 Years. This could
include an additional 2

£50,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total

The route to market will be determined
following a market

6




9¢ abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

housing stock.

years. The 2 years
will be in relation to
carrying out a 24
month call off at the
end of the
framework/DPS or
appropriate route.

anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
plus 2 year extension is:
£300,000.

assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

M&E contracts

Laundry refurbishment works at; The
Gaskins, Condor House, Ashley Road,
Kingsley House, Bloy Street, Chichester,
Padmore Court, Corey Close, Hilton
Court, Henacre, Playford Gardens.

8-12 weeks per
project

£35,000 - 50,000 per project.

The route to market will be a preference
for call off from existing BCC framework
, but with other PCR compliant routes
being adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Communal rewiring: Southbow,
Winterstoke, Whitemead Gaywood,
Canynge, Spencer and Norton full rewire

4 months per project

Estimated project spend per
project:

Winterstoke, Southbow and
Whitemead £750,000.
Gaywood £350,000

Canynge £200,000

Spencer and Norton £600,000.

The total anticipated maximum
expenditure is: £1,900,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Boiler and Plant: St Peters Boilers, Trinity
Lodge, various BMS’s, Gas detection
systems

Boilers 4-6 weeks,
BMS 1 week per
block, Gas detection 1
week per block

Estimated project spend per
project:

St Peters £100,000 Trinity
£100,000 Various BMS £50,000
Gas detection £30,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable

7




)€ abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

The total anticipated maximum
expenditure is: £280,000.

frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Lift refurbishment / replacements to blocks
at Patterson, Cashmore, Latchmoor,

Proctor, Spencer

3-6 months per lift

Estimated project spend per
project:

£300,000 per block other than
Cashmore at £100,000

Call off from existing BCC Lift
refurbishment framework

Lifts maintenance contract to blocks 4-6 years £400,000 per annum estimated | The route to market will be determined
across the housing stock. expenditure. The total following a market
anticipated maximum assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
expenditure based on 4-6 years, their potential advantages) with a
is: £2,400,000. (Based on 6 preference for the use of suitable
years). frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.
Sprinkler installation across housing stock | 2-4 years £1,000,000 per annum The route to market will be determined

estimated expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 2-4 years,
is: £4,000,000. (Based on 4
years).

following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.




g¢ abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to

Approach to Market

value) plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget
Domestic Heating: Electric Heating 2-4 years £1,100,000 per annum The route to market will be determined

including cylinders city wide

estimated expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 2-4 years,
is: £4,400,000. (Based on 4
years).

following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Planned and Cyclical Programmes

Kitchen installations and Rewires - across
the housing stock.

Deliver renewal of 800 Kitchens per year
& 150 stand- alone rewires & estimated
160 Rewires with new Kitchens

5 Years
(4+1)

£5,678,000 per annum
estimated expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum

expenditure based on 5 years, is:
£28,390,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Insulation Works across the housing stock
Cavity Wall Insulation Works & Loft
Insulation Works to be carried out to
properties across the City, requiring
thermal improvements.

4 Years (3+1)

£185,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years, is:
£740,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.




6E abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

Roof Replacement - Low rise blocks and
houses across the housing stock

4 Years
(3+1)

£1,356,000 spend this year on
current framework for this year’s
programme. The new
framework total anticipated
maximum expenditure based on
4 years, is: £5,424,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the set up or use of
suitable frameworks - whether Council
or third party - but with other PCR
compliant routes being adopted where
considered more appropriate.

External & Communal Maintenance (Lot 3
Projects — call offs / mini tenders)

Project addresses at present are —

1-3 Brentry Lodge,

1-17 Haweswater,

2-162 Ledbury Rd,

111-141 Four Acres,

31-45 Hudds Vale Road, Apsley Rd
96-98 Cotham Brow,

Bk 4 Worcester Crescent

Freeling House, Aston House, Chatterton
House, Plimsoll House,

St Matthias House, Elton House, Elbridge
House, Whitson House, Gloucester
House, Somerset House, Wessex House,
1-8 Cromwell View,

Millpool Court,Ledbury Rd,

Thornycroft Close,

1-48 Hillsborough Flats

81-105 Highridge Green.

Further project addresses may be added
as a result of referrals or works within the

Current framework
has 3 years with 1
years extension, that
runs until April 2024

£2,272,865 total estimated
programme spend for coming
year

Mini tenders using Lot 3 of the External
& Communal Maintenance Framework
to cover combined works that can
include External Maintenance &
Painting, Communal Maintenance &
Painting, Replacement Windows &
Replacement Roofs to deliver the
2021/22 External Maintenance
Programme.

10




oY abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

External Maintenance Programme
requiring combined works, and based on
changing property condition

Window Replacement low rise blocks &
houses.

The following are locations that are not
already listed in the Lot 3 works projects
Charterhouse Road, Brixton Road, The
Brambles, Jack Knight House, Lakemead
Gardens..

Others may be added due to referrals
from Response maintenance, or windows
identified following surveys for addresses
on the 2021/22 Ext Maintenance
Programme.

4 Years
(3+1)

£1,284,000 per annum
estimated expenditure for this
year’s programme. For the new
procurement due to start the
total anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years, is:
£5,136,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party. Until then utilise the Window DPS
already set up for call offs for any
window projects required on the
2021/22 Window Replacement
Programme.

Fire Safety Works

Assessments & Independent Checks.
This is part of the ongoing 12 year
programme of Fire Safety works which
started in 2012. This year is 764 Low Rise
Flats as listed---

Halston Dr, Ludlow CI, Beggerswell Cl,
Corey CI, Burnell Dr, Conduit Rd,
Langsdown Hs, Francis Hs, Kingsley Hs,
St Mathias Hs, Francis Hs, Wessex Hs,
Somerset Hs, Gloucester Hs, Easton Rd,
Payne Dr, Pountney Dr, Vining Wk,
Walker ClI, Highett Dr, Cashmore Hs,
Wainbrook Dr, Crabtree Wk , Bell Hill Rd.

Individual projects —
call offs from current
DPS in place for next
3 years

£2,183,500 total for this year’'s
projects

The route to market preference is to call
off from the existing Fire Safety Works
DPS to deliver Fire Safety
Improvements/compartmentation works
for 2021/22 programme.

11




T obed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall

approved budget

Approach to Market

Other blocks / addresses may be brought
forward into the programme depending on
condition information / inspection reports.
Also to carry out further improvements to
High Rise Blocks as identified by ongoing

safety inspections that include Gilton
House, Moorfields House, Ashmead Hs,

Castlegate Hs, Butler Hs , Sedgewick Hs,

Barwick Hs, Carolina Hs, Fremantle Hs ,
Amada Hse and any improvements to
other blocks as identified by Fire Risk

External Maintenance and Refurbishment High Rise Projects

Ropewalk House 18 months Estimated £1,500,000 project Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4
cost. (Subject to survey and External Maintenance Framework or to
scope of works) use of other suitable frameworks -

whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Francombe/Waring/Underdown 18 months Estimated £1,500,000 project Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4

cost. (Subject to survey and
scope of works)

External Maintenance Framework or to
use of other suitable frameworks -
whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Littlecross House

18-24 months

Estimated £1,500,000 project
cost. (Subject to survey and
scope of works)

Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4
External Maintenance Framework or to
use of other suitable frameworks -
whether Council or third party - but with

12




2 obed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to

Approach to Market

value) plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Corbett House 24 months Estimated £2,000,000 project Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4
cost. (Subject to survey and External Maintenance Framework or to
scope of works) use of other suitable frameworks -

whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Northfield House 12 months Estimated £750,000 project Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4
cost. (Subject to survey and External Maintenance Framework or to
scope of works) use of other suitable frameworks -

whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Barton House 24 months Estimated £2,500,000 project Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4
cost. (Subject to survey and External Maintenance Framework or to
scope of works) use of other suitable frameworks -

whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Ashmead, Longlands and Harwood House | 18 months Estimated £2,000,000 — Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4

£2,500,000 project cost.(Subject
to survey and scope of works)

External Maintenance Framework or to
use of other suitable frameworks -
whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more

13




oy obed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to

Approach to Market

value) plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget
appropriate.

Haviland & Jon Cozens 24 months Estimated £2,000,000 — Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4
£2,500,000 project cost.(Subject | External Maintenance Framework or to
to survey and scope of works) use of other suitable frameworks -

whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Walker Close / Payne Drive — significant 6 months Estimated £350,000 project Call off from our BCC internal Lot 4

repairs to damaged cladding

cost.

External Maintenance Framework or to
use of other suitable frameworks -
whether Council or third party - but with
other PCR compliant routes being
adopted where considered more
appropriate.

Window servicing - 5 year window service
programme based on 6-9 blocks per year

5 years

£125,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 5 years is:
£625,000 for the new
procurement to start in 2021/22.

Utilise the BCC Window DPS already
set up for call offs for any window
projects required for 2021/22 Window
Replacement Programme. Either
include new procurement in the window
replacement tender (see above) or
seek alternative route to market if
appropriate - either use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Note - Other blocks may be substituted as priorities emerge, particularly blocks requiring cladding repairs in relation to fire safety, or when inspections

reveal significant changes in block conditions

14




vt abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

Specialist Projects / Conversions

Responsive Structural work to houses and
blocks across the housing stock.

Currently a 1 Year
Structural Framework
is in place. These are
one off projects

£500,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure for a future
procurement based on 4 years is
£2,000,000.

The route to market will be calling off of
our existing internal Structural
Framework for this year and
subsequently determined following a
market assessment/appraisal, albeit
(given their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of our existing
BCC internal DPS, for example lot 1-3.
In addition considering other PCR
compliant routes being adopted where
considered more appropriate.

Additional Work to Voids — extensions and
conversion wooks to properties identified
with potential to provide larger or
additional homes across the housing
stock.

Currently 3 year DPS
is in place. These are
one off projects.

£300,000 per annum estimated
expenditure.

The route to market will be calling off of
our existing internal DPS.

Acquired refurbishments projects, across
the acquired housing property types,
where major specialist repairs needed.

1 year

£300,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 1 year.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of our existing
BCC internal DPS, for example lot 1-3.
In addition considering other PCR
compliant routes being adopted where
considered more appropriate.

15




Gy abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

value)

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to
plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

Approach to Market

Carbon Retrofit Pilot Projects

One with Energieprong concept, to 40
homes (to be selected from across the
housing stock)

One further project, to be designed and
brought to tender, for a selection of 20 to
40 homes.

One off project to be
Delivered in 21/22

Delivered across 2
years, starting in 2021

£3'600,000 to £4,000,000 for the
project

£1,000,000 to £2,000,000
approximately, for the project

These are funded from a
mixture of HRA Capital and
grant awards.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks — whether the Transport for
London IPP, Council or other third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

Adaptations

New adaptations, stairlifts, repairs to
adaptations, and extensions/
Conversions projects across the housing
stock

3+1
(4 Years)

£4,000,000 per annum
estimated expenditure (Capital
HRA & DFG). The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 3 years
plus 1 is: £16,000,000.

£575,000 revenue per annum
based on 4 years total anticipated
spend is £2,300,000.

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate

Stair Lift Maintenance across the housing
stock

3 to 6 years, depending
on market engagement

£250,000 per annum estimated
expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 3-6 years,
is: £1,500,000. (Based on 6
years).

The route to market will be determined
following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third

16




o abed

Appendix A2 HIP

Programme / Project

Duration (where a range
is included this will be
informed by analysis of best
route to market and best

Estimated Annual contract
sum (PA) / or project sum,
approval request for up to

Approach to Market

value) plus 10% with projects
managed within the overall
approved budget

party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate

Garages

Repairs and clearances to garage blocks | 4 years (3+1) £170,000 per annum estimated | The route to market will be determined

and units across the city to make them
available to let.

expenditure. The total
anticipated maximum
expenditure based on 4 years,
is: £680,000.

following a market
assessment/appraisal, albeit (given
their potential advantages) with a
preference for the use of suitable
frameworks - whether Council or third
party - but with other PCR compliant
routes being adopted where considered
more appropriate.

17




Appendix A2 HIP

CAPITAL

5 Year Investment Plan

Type Flats

mairt pragramme & therefore
may differteriate from numbers
in keystane per year.

5 Previous year .
Planned & Cyclical budget - 20/21 Previous year notes Year1l-2021to |Year2-2022to |Year3-2023to |Yeard-2024to |Year5-2025to | . . .
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 R
Works £ Motes £ £ £ £ £ Notes
Plan far 700 per year @ Plan for 300 Kitz per year. Based on revised
Jistcournts average 4250 plus auverage with estimated Couid working costs &
0% ta reflect X gt new Electrical requirements & plastering costs -
P13621-1006 - Planned cogt;rzq‘;;i:ed” IZ::.;:I o 5001 800 = £4540,000 Flus Full Fewires with
; £3,803,800 . " o £5,168,000 £5,168,000 £4,528,000 £4,528,000 £4,528 000 | 200 Kits estimated as 120 (203 of Kits] based on
Programme - Kitchen Contract h i er!s aving atu reyized average with LO1 Elec Regs - £3300 & 160
rewire (175 rewires at average = £528,000 [This to be retendered in 2021 50
cost of £3036) additional costs may decrease or increaze subject to the
£531,300 market]
Plan for 220 per year @ Eztimated 120 Stand Alone Fewires per year plus
P13621-1007 - Planned £6E7 920 Jistzourts average 2760 plus £510 000 £510.000 £510.000 £510.000 £510.000 J0referrals, = 150 based on revise ave with Covid
-Ujgramme - Rewires Contract ! 105 ta reflect current market ! ! ! ' ' ‘warking cozts & LO1Elec Regs - £3400 ¢ 150 =
ar costs = £3036 £510,000
M d
(@] Based on Roofs required in combination with
F13621-1012 - Planned Bazed on Mumbers due from the Ext Cyclical Programme, plus referrals, Year 1
IN Programme - Roofs £1,660,300 Keystone. Those relifed will be £1,356,000 £1,310,400 £1,310,400 £1,310,400 £1,310,400 |- 252 Roofs @ average cost of 5380 = est cost
Replacement replaced by Referrals of 1,356,000, Year 2 - § based on 208 Roofs per
~ P year i@ ave cost of £6300
Thiz iz a specific programme to address the lack
of ingulation in mansard rocks [where the roof
Manzard Roof Works £0 Future Planning £0 £1,313,000 £1,313,000 £1,313,000 £1,313,000 acts as the wall of the upper floar]. These homes
=uffer from cold and damp because of the roof
design
Based on average numbers in Bazed on wWindows required in combination with
P13621-1013 - Planned keystone across nedt 3 years... Ext Paint Frogramme, 2021022 based on 334
Windows - Houses & House £1,288,809 orks picked up as part of it £1,254,000 £1,140,300 £1,140,300 £1,140,200 £1,140,300  |Properties [subject tofull survey) at est cost of

£1284000, therefore ave cost of £3258 per
dwelling. fear 2 - & bazed on 350 dwellings per
year at ave costof £3258,

Continued....

18




Appendix A2 HIP

Planned & Cyclical

Previous year

Previous year notes

5 Year Investment Plan

19

budget - 20/21 Year1-2021to |(Year2-2022toc |Year3-2023tc |Yeard-2024toc | Year5-2025to Budget Setting Notes
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Works £ Notes £ £ f f £ Notes
Basedon 300 Loft ‘fear - 6 Based on 260 Loft Installs/Felays @
£400 [£100,000)and B0 Cavity Wall
N i . InztallsiFelays @ ave cost £364 ave cost A A
P13621-1016 - Cavity Wall & £165,450 and 75 Cavity wall Installs inch £185,000 £185,000 £185,000 £1835,000 £1g5,00p  |IMstalls inclu estraction & remedials @ ave cost
Insulation ion & dials @ ave £1200 [£60,000] pluz 50 referrals from Responze
EHITACon & reme far sloping soffit insulation @ 2500 each
cost £750 [£25,000)
Eazed on Low Rize Revized Flat Entrance &
Communal Fire Door Replacement programme
Bazed an 1177 Flats & fitting of that iz planned to end 2024025 & Joiner Shaop
556 Flat doors, 670 Comm Capacity bo manufacture, 21122 based on 434
P13621-1018 - Fire Doors £1,236,995 DOoars & 1015 Frames plus direct £1,204,830 £1,179,723 £1,178,282 £1,150,000 £1,000,000 Flat Doars, 431 Communal Daors & 92% Frames
team fitting costs & joinary plus Jainer Shop Overtime costs, Direct Team
ouvertime ete. Fitting Costs & Misc Costs eq Jewson recharge
& Plaster Fepairs. 2025(26 onwards, checking of
_U sereens faddressing final low risk items.
£8.823.274 £59,807,830 £10.806,428 £10.164,382 £10,136, 700 £9,936,700
h Estimated amount far new mability scooter
%w budget - Mobility scooters £0 Mew budget £50, D00 £50,000 £510, 0 £50,000 £50,000 storage units - programme to be developed. Only
for B years
£8,823,274 £9,857,880 £10.856.428 £10.214,382 £10,186, 700 £10,036,700




Appendix A2 HIP

5 Year Investment Plan

in Blocks - Boiler & Plant

w ater maing, Business
Maragement Sustem upgrades
warious, Berchel, Mawdeley and
Martfield rocf Fans.

. Previous year .
M&E [ Heating budget - 20/21 Previous year notes Year1-2021to |Year2-2022to |Year3-2023to |Yeard-2024to |Year5-2025t0 | o .
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 SoEEEA s
Works £ Notes £ £ £ £ £ Notes
The budgets faryears Tand 2 are ta
Eiazed on 750 full inctallations replace gas bailers with new gas bailers!
P13621-1002 - Heating N . ’ systems at breakdownl where beyond
. = £2,263,750 323 2205_'?222::9:‘;3'3;?;“9”5 £398,000 £750,000 £1,770,000 £2,391,685 £2,000,000 |econemicrepsir and whers there is no
eplacement inctallations alternative. v'rz 3 onw ards are the ariginal
BEF amounts far replacing gas baoilers, and
thiz will displace same of the net zero costs.
Far 2W2Z: zlippage fram 2020, PRG [30k].
Mary court [30k], Padmaore Court [30k]
Juniper Court, Farringford, ?:;cg:z:;[j:glgk]
P13616-1004 - ME&E Investment i
3 - £225,000 Shi=anw ster Lourt, Princess £285,000 £455,000 £300,000 £245,000 £275,000 | CondorHouse (20k]
in Blocks - Laundries Roaval Gardens, Mary Court, Ashl d 59 (45k)
Haweszwater, Greenhaven shisy raa
Kingsley Houze [G0k]
mv) Bloy Street (20k]
Q) All dependant on recruitment.
8 Southbow , Winterstoke, \whitemead Rewire
Finizh Raw an, Fedw aod, Willow [250k 2ach). Internal workfarce prajects
_b rewires @ £250k each. + PRG, lansdowre Court A0 (2100,
_@361 6-1002 - M&E Inve str'r_l E-r'lt £505,400 |n_terna_|| work_fnn:e costings who £585,000 £1,000,000 £1,000,000 £1,000,000 £1,000,000 Bizhpart fl'.'-E' retentions [25k_]._aner tharn
in Blocks - Communal Rewiring will deliver Princess Rayal Keystone figures as not anticipated that all
Gardens. Condor and Fobin warks willbe due in line with Keystone.
Cloze Emergency Lighting Further review to understand requirements
wehich may resultin lawer numbers.
P13616-1003 - M&E Investment Sileon 3 new entrance daors, W arious PAC Fabs. [10k]
in Blocks - D E £144 000 bizhport 5 new entrance doars, £30,000 £50,000 £80,000 £80,000 £80,000 Entrance Daorsz, Kingsley Hauze w10,
in Blocks - Door Entry Gauwood Housze full door entry Maunsel Orive #d (Sk each]
Halrowd new water mains.
Kingsmarsh house bailers, St Peters Hause Bailers [100k), Trinity Plant
Rawnsley Housze external water Raom [100k], Warious BMS (50k), Gaz
F13616-1005 - ME&E Investment i i i i i
£238,500 mainz, Twinnel House internal £220,000 £200,000 £200,000 £200,000 £200,000 detection system [30k]. Small decreaze in

capital budget in subsequent faur years
becausze of significant investment in
previous years.

Continued...

20




Appendix A2 HIP

5 Year Investment Plan

21

M&E [ Heating Cont... :l::;usz‘;?;rl Previous year notes
- Year 1-2021to |Year2-2022to |(Year3-2023to (Yeard-2024to |Year5-2025to Budget Satting Notes
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Works E MNotes £ F £ Notes
Slippage from 2020 \Whitemead House »2
lift [S3E5k)
Rosevear[122k)
Pattersan [236k)
Cashmare House [100k]
Latehmaaor [100k)
Proctor [236k] Likely to slip ta fallawing vear
notincluded in total but tendered as a
Finish duckmoor raad three, package
PHEIE-?DDE - M&E I_IWE stment £841,500 Hanauer, Rozsitar wWoaod, £956,000 £1,200,000 £1,000,000 £1,200,000 £1,200,000 Spencer [296k] Likely ta zlip ta fallowing
in Blocks - Lifts Rozevear yesr not included in tatal but tendered as
package
U Budget forecasted lawer than Keustane
Q however surveys required ta caloulate
@) accurate investment plan as liftz are proving
) ta last langer than estimated dates. Alza
(ﬂ new manitaring system is showing run times
(@) rather replace on age.
F13616-1037 - Investment in Estimated cost, A full review and analysis will be
_ £300,000 Filotin ane black £ 500,000 £2 000,000 £2, 000,000 £2,000,000 £2 000,000 taken of the pilot, and approach will be
Blocks Planned - Sprinklers developed and agreed.
P13616-1048 - Night Storage £250,800 5?.|nstalls pluz immersions! £1,100,000 £1,100,000 £1,100,000 £1,100,000 £1,100,000 Eased on 280 installs per year @ £4,400 per
Replacement cylinders install
£5,168,350 £4,614,000 £6,735,000 £7,450,000 £3,216,685 £7,855,000




Appendix A2 HIP

Major Projects

Previous year

Previous year notes

5 Year Investment Plan

Year5-2025 to

TG abed

22

hudge‘t—Zﬂ_-"zl Year1-2021to |Year2-2022to |Year3-2023to |Yeard-2024to Budset Setting Notes
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 == =
Works £ Notes £ f £ f £ Notes
Funding far structural surveus . . -
P13616-1012 - Blocks - J W Funding far structural tigat
" £100,000 investigations, eto. Man- £100,000 £100,000 £100,000 £100,000 £100,000 B i AN,
Contingency " ! et Maon- scheme specfic.
ECheme Spechic.
External Repairs - Subtotal (3ee This iz the Subtotal of all the
- . Lo . - This is the Subtatal of all the individual block
Repairs page for individual £1,500,000 individual block costs inthe £3,635,500 £2,355,500 £1,956,000 £2,149,000 £2,471,500 costs in the External Fepairs page below
costs) Ex:ternal Repairs page belaw
Majaor Refurbishment Subtaotal - Thisz iz the Subtotal of all the
) I . ) . Thiz is the Subtatal of all the individual block
[See next page for individual £5, 480,000 individual block costz inthe £13,996,667 £16,323,333 £13,423,333 £5,806,666 £2,000,000 costsinthe Major Fiefurb page belaw
budgets) IMajor Refurb page below
This is budget to bring our homes o EPC Cin
addition to planned heating and insulation warks.
Energy Efficiency Waorks £0 Future Planning £0 £2,475,000 £2,475,000 £2,475,000 £2,475,000 Flans are being drafted to deliver these works,
most likely further wall insulation schemes. This
relates back to the SHAPE work
£7,080,000 £17,732,167 £21,253,833 £17.954,333 £10,530,666 £7,046,500




Appendix A2 HIP

MP - External Repairs

5 Year Investment Plan

Breakdown of projects under Previous year S ot Year1-2021toc |Year2-2022toc |Year3-2023to |Yeard-2024to | Year5-2025to T S .
External Repairs headline cast budget - 20,21 reMlDLsyear notes 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 UOBET SEtting Notes
Subtotal= £1,500,000 Subtotal for Year 1 to 5= £3.635.500 £2,355,500 £1.956.000 £2.149,000 £2.471.500
Haviland and JCH - over 21122 and 22023 -
£380,500 £380,500 possibly externally resourced
£1,200,000 Gilton - £1.2m - allin 21422
E£975,000 Corbet - survey now, do 2122 - 975K
Roegate - start 21022 and finish 22023 - £750K -
£400,000 £350,000 [£400 then 250K
Zome blocks may move around £1,244,000 FAWU - 2227 - £1244K
the programme depending on £700.000 Charleton Langton Tyndall - £1,050,000
their condition dhad total - 350k in 20021 and £700k in 2122
- - i - CETED
P13621-1017 - External Major BT Tyndall House - £250,000 £563,000 Beaufort - 23424 - £963K
Repairs to Blocks T * Langten and Charleton House
J1) -£80:0,000 across both - £304,000 Proctor and Pattison - 2426 - £304K
QJ provisional sum
8 * Gilton House - £400,000 £285,000 Downview - 24125 - £285K
ol £217,000 Danby - 23824 - £217K
N
- iy St Peters House - 23124 bo 24025 - E6VER
£375,000 £300,000 Total - £375 in 22024 and £300 in 24425
- Butler not fire breaks, but windows et -
£780,000 £760,000 - 24425
£401,000 £401,000 Littlecross - Stark 22023 to 23024 - £3021K
Lansdowne, Pountney & Yining -
£1012,000 15495 - £1.012,000
_ Rossiter Wood Court - 25/26=
£457.500 | pye7 500
£20,000 Kingsdown Parade - 2526 = £50k
£550,000 Moorfields - 25/26 = £550k
£372,000 Clifton Vale Close - 25/26= £372k

23




Appendix A2 HIP

MP - Major Refubishment

5 Year Investment Plan

Breakdown of projects under Major Previous year T ot Year1-2021to |Year2-202Z2toc |Year3-2023toc |Yeard-2024to Year5 - 2025 to T Frg e
Refurbishment Headline cast budget - 2021 TEVIOUS year notes 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 ucEe tng Hotes
Subtotal= £5,480,000 Subtotal= £13.996,667 £16.323.333 £13.423.333 £5.806.666 £2.000,000
Additional Structural Works for Mo Cost Code - Added for F dFi ial
o £2,000,000 £2,000,000 £2.000,000 o oSt ade - AddedfarFanward Finansta
unspecified blocks Flanning.
Tenders s=oon to be evaluated
P13616-104%9 - Major and may start on site earl 20021 budget F t s £350k, £3.8m total,
] fer £1,500,000 etar M £1,725,000 £1,725,000 Qe NOM OrEnast a5 B m koka
Refurbishments - Silcox Road 2020, majority of spend will be now will extend to 22423, Remainder
across 20/21 and 21722
= s . Original budget of £400k now Forecast as 2100k
P13616-1043 - Investment in P I ding 4 2
£400,000 rovisiona’ sum pending £1,000,000 £100,000 For 20421, Tatal £1.2m - majority of spend in
blocks - Walwyn Gardens decisions on future works 2022, could extend o 22023
Further investigations - . o
616-1045 - Barton Hill langlands, ashmead, harwood Further inuestigations - Longlands, Axhmead,
- R £100,000 £2, 500,000 £2,500,000 £2,500,000 Harwood and Barton, then programme For Future
estigations and Barton, then programme years
: for future years
@ . Covered under major Mis=ing firebreak.s programme - Bukler,
3616-1040 - Cladding / i
! 'oaing £250,000 refurbishments - this cladding £250,000 Earlands, Brackridge and Castlegate. E70k per
ladding / Major Projects block for missing fire breaks Majority of spendin
= improvements 222
P13616-1047 - Major Aszzume tender releasze in early F F £250K in 20021, Total £6.4
- : o o arecas in . Total £6.4m.
Refurbishments - Eccleston & £1, 200,000 2020 and starton iste & £3,075,000 £3,075,000 Fiemainder over 152 and #2423
Fhoenix months later
tenders being drafted and
P13616-1046 - Major budget request for 20/21 on Current year Forecast to £280k, whole spend
£2, 000, 000 ) £3,916,667 £3,916,667 £3,916,667 ) .
Refurbishments - Bishport 5 . assumption works commence bE R [t IR profile shifted va 2324 - £12m
Apr/May 2020
Major refurbishment - Dowve . ) .
) £0 £0 £3,806,66E £3,806,66E £3,806,6E6 £0 Elocks subject to option appraizal
Street (seven blocks)
Vincent Close L H £0 £1,200,000 £1,200,000 £0 £0 Elocks subject to opticn appraizal
_ Originally 2324 External Repairs, now Major
Ropewalk (Need to request o Mot previgusly in Major Refurb £1 500,000 Fiefurb and bringing Farward - Repairs, Rocf,
Cost Code) profile. * * Windows. Works start beginning 2122 and
throughout.

24




Appendix A2 HIP

Previous year

5 Year Inwvestment Plan

Land Enablin Previous year notes - - - - -
g budget - 20/21 Year1-2021to |Year2-2022toc |Year3-2023to |Yeard-2024toc | Year5-2025to Budget Setting Notes
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Works £ MNotes £ £ £ £ £ Notes
Work to prepare and maintain i i .
sites and to carry out the Changes to how sites are identified have
- - ino . cat i .
F13620-1003 - Land Enabling £75,000 necessary feasability £40,000 £40,000 £40,000 £40,000 gagppp  |Meantthatthisbudget is natrequired to
Works assassmant to clarify if sites the same extent as reguired previously
are developable and can therefore be reduced.
£75,000 £4.0,000 £40,000 £40,000 £4.0,000 £40,000

G obed

Accessible Homes

Previous year

Previous year notes

5 Year Investment Plan

budget - 20/21 Year1-2021to |Year2-2022to |Year3-2023to |(Yeard-2024toc | Year5-2025to .
Budget Setting Motes
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Works £ Notes £ £ £ £ £ MNotes
Additional £500k per year. This budget i=
allocated ta both major and minor adaptations.
Increased as budget may require an uplif

F13615-1001 - Adaptations £2,000,000 Adaptations to HRA properties £2,500,000 £2,500,000 £2.500,000 £2,500,000 £2.500,000 depending on the impact of Bresit and other
contractor cost issues. A review will be
completed next year ba review works against this
budget.
£2.000.000 £2,500,000 £2,500,000 £2,500,000 £2,500,000 £2,500,000

25




Appendix A2 HIP

Works

Previous year
budget - 20/21

Previous year notes

5 Year Investment Plan

Year1-2021to
2022

Year 2-2022 to
2023

Year 3-2023 to
2024

Year 4-2024 to
2025

Year 5- 2025 to
2026

Budget Setting Motes

Motes

£

£

£

£

£

Notes

P13614-1004 - Kitchens - Relets

£1,212,228

Bazed on 804 kitchens at
E2007

£1,760,000

£1,260,000

£1,760,000

£1,260,000

£1,260,000

Estimated wolume 420 @ 23k, Mumbers revised
down based on standard adopted and recent
completions. Mew approach is to repair rather
than replace to speed up the turnaround times.
Unit cost increased Following review, based on
principle void contractor average baseline costs,

P13614-1005 - Rewires - Relets

£873,200

Based on 472 rewires at
£1,850

E759,000

£759,000

E759,000

E759,000

E£759,000

Estimated wolume 330 @ £2.2k. Mumbers
revized down based on standard adopted and
recent completions. Mew approach is to repair
rather to replace to speed up the turnaround
times. Unit cost increased Following review,
bazsed on principle woid contractor average
bazeline costs,

GG abed

P13614-1006 - Bathrooms -
Relets

£1,236,000

Bazed on 412 bathrooms at
£3,000

ET00,000

£700,000

E700,000

E700,000

E700,000

Eztimated wolume 350 @ £2k. Mumbers revized
down based on standard adopted and recent
completions. Mew approach is ba repair rather to
replace ta speed up the turnaround times. Unit
oozt decreased following review, based on
principle woid contractor average baseline costs.

£3,321,428

£2,719,000

£2,719,000

£2,719,000

£2,719,000

£2,719,000

26




Appendix A2 HIP

5 Year Investment Plan

9G abed

27

Asset Management & Previous year X
. budget 20:,21 Previous year notes Year1-2021tc |Year2-2022tc |Year3-2023tc |Yeard-2024toc | Year5-2025to Budset Setfing Notes
Review 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 == e
Works £ Notes £ £ £ £ £ Motes
P15258-1002 - Structural Pro-active block building . o
B B £ 100,000 £100,000 £ 100, 000 £0 £0 £0 Pro-active block building surveys
Investigations SUMVEYS
Mew budget for empty garages - S . i 4
to repair and bring back into bu' "Eb D; FTF}W"E!—E"ES- E}drpr-EII' E:
P15258-1003 - Garages £223.310 use, increased forecast £203,390 £183,470 £153,550 £143,630 £53,710 ringhack Intouse, Increasediorecas
. revenue stream I}ﬁSEtSEEPItE|FE|}EIF
revenue stream off sets capital
. costs
repair Costs
£323,310 £303,350 £283,470 £163,550 £143,630 £53,710




Appendix A2 HIP

5 Year Investment Plan

28

Special Projects T Previous year Previous year notes Year 1-2021 Year2-2022 Year 3-2023 Year4-2024 Year 5-2025
= to = to = to = to = to
e e budget - 20/21 Y ear ear ear ear ear Budget Setting Notes
022 023 2024 2025 1026
Works £ Notes £ £ f £ £ Notas
Budget provision for integral garage
conyersions az and when arise [15k each), pilot
P15312-1001 - Extensions & Extensions - Creating loft conversions [3 3t approw £35 k each], shap
B B £370,000 dditi | bed | £300,000 £ 300, 000 £ 300, 000 £30:0, 000 £300,000 conyersions (3 at £20k each), making smaller
Conversions to Voids additional bedrooms at relet homes [e.g. 3 bed house ta 21 bed flats [35k
each), and potential extensions of foster carer
hiomes.
Capital relet works needed c t budast incubfisient and will b ;
P13614-1001 - Acquireds £300,000 when reletting Victorian Street £300,000 £300,000 £300,000 £300,000 £300,000 m'i"s"::ar HagetinsUikient and wilhe oerspen
properties
P13614-1002 - Structural Works . ) -
. £500,000 Reactive work to structural £500,000 £500,000 £500,000 £500,000 £500,000 Current budget allocation sufficient
ta HRA Properties
P13619-1008 - Environmental Minor estate improvements to - - . . - Minor estate improvements to appearance and
Improvement £137,500 security and landscape £137,500 £137,500 £137,500 £137,500 £137,500 security of neighbourhoods and estates,
D
13619-1007 - Neighbourhood Larg tatei t i i
0% s £462,500 BfEEr Esiale Improvemean £462,500 £862,500 £462,500 £462,500 agz,gop  |Meiorestate improvements o appearance and
Investment schemes security of neighbourhoods and estates,
2]
=~
Mew budget for whale house retrofit pilok
Retrofit Pilot Projects (New projects - upta 80 properties, with some grant
£0 New Budget £2 500,000 £900,000 £0 £0 £0 funding to be added. These pilats will allow Far
Code Needed) bring waluable learning in developing our net zerc
carbon strategy.
£1,670,000 £4, 200,000 £2,600,000 £1,700,000 £1,700,000 £1, 700,000




Appendix A2 HIP

29

5 Year Investment Plan
Previous year notes Year1-2021to |Year2-2022to |Year3-2023to0 |Yeard-2024to |Year5-2025t0 |o ing Notes
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Works £ Notes £ £ o £ £ MNotes
Budget covers telecoms consultant fees and
: Budget includes provision for service charges plus valuation reparts where
F13618-1003 - Disposal Costs £50,000 service charges and telecoms £50,000 £50,000 £50,000 £50,000 £30,000 specialist advice is needed. To remain at current
amount.
P15258-1001 - Planned - Rolling Asbestos Management .ﬂ\.she.stns remoualﬂ.inter:.'?ntinn at a further 20
£50,000 £170,000 £70,000 £50,000 £40,000 £40,000 high rize blocks as identified by asbestos
Asbestos Management Surveys Surveys.
£100,000 £220,000 £120,000 £100,000 £50,000 £30,000
5 Year Investment Plan
Previous year .
20021 Previous year notes Year1-2021to |Year2-2022to |Year3-2023to |Yeard4-2024to | Year5-2025to z S—
s 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 udget Setting Notes
Works £ Notes £ £ £ £ £ Motes
P13612-1001 - Staffing o
. Planned programmes staff- Planned programmes staff - capitalised
Allocation - Planned £2,081,000 L . £2,750,000 £2,750,000 £2,750,000 £2,750,000 £2,750,000 )
capitalized salaries. =salaries.
Programme
P13613-1002 - Staffing HRA funds for Accessible .
. | o £387,242 £387,242 £387,242 £387,242 £387,242 £387,242 HRAfunds for Accessible Homes staff
Allocation - Disabled Facilities Homes staff
£2.468.242 £3,177,242 £3,177,242 £3,177,242 £3,177,242 £3,177,242




Appendix A2 HIP

Revenue
Previous 1 Year Investment Plan
- yYear .
Planned & Cyclical Previous year notes Year1-2021 to .
budget - 5022 Budget Setting Notes
20/21
Works £ Notes £ Notes
2287 properties due during 21/22. Provision allowed for 2622
10080 - External Maintenance & Based on 2300 dwellings per year @ est properties at estimated costs of £1700 per property to allow for
o ) £3.910,000 £4,457 400 contingency for slippage from year 20/21. Year 2 to Year 5 - average of
Palmmg - Low Rise ave cost of £1700 2331 properties per year due under programme. Budget set on ave cost
of £1800 for 2500 properties per year to allow for contingency.
QJ Based on Comm Maintenance
(@] Programme 2020/21 & average cost of 2021/22 budget based on works to 50 blocks/sites [323 dwellings) @
i awerage costs of £900 per flat for enclosed staircases & £450 per flat for
(Mooa1 - Communal Maintenance & blocks by number of flats @ £900 per
o £422 600 R R £566,550 openwalkways. Future programme to be reviewed but Year2 to 5
(ﬂ Palmlng flat & 50K contingency forfloormg baszed on estimated 45 Blocks / Sites with 800 dwellings peryear, 400
[{o} warks. 2020/21 Confirmed Programme @ £900 [£360,000) & 400 @ £450 (£180,000).
43 sites with 414 Flats
. . Based on est £800 per Address & 50 Year 1toYear 5 based on estimated costs of £1000 per property & 80
10086 - Assisted Decorations £40,000 Addresses per year £60,000 addrasses peryear,
Compartmentation works to 856 flats Bazed on Revised Low Rise Compartmentation Works Programme that
. @ave 1K per flat plus 200K contigency iz planned to end 25/26 plus contingency for revisits following
10082 - Fire SafETV Works B for revisits following independent £2,183,500 independent checks. 202122 based onwaorks to 764 Flats @ ave 2700
checks per flat & 100K contingency for revisits
£5,428,600 £7,267.450

30




Appendix A2 HIP

1 Year Investment Plan

Previous
ME&E / Heating year budget Previous year notes Yeari-2021t0 |
udget Setting Notes
-20/21 2022
Works £ Notes £ Notes
Annual service for all homes with
10079 - Gas Servicing £1,652,360 | £1,636,170 Frevious year +2.75% increase
gas heating
* 10084: 1300 tests per year, 380 satisfactory @ £170 per test,
10084 & 15327 Combined - £300.000 4+1 contract awarded in Nov 2015 costs £344 000 470 unsatisfactory @ £200 per test
Electrical Safety Testing ! from 1200 per year at £250 per test. ! *15327: Increased number of tests means remedials increase.
Awverage of 30% require work. [100k)
Both smoke vents and fire contract expire Due to Covid contract extension agreed until 2021, Will
10065 - Smoke WVents £15,000 in 2020. Will look to combine both as £15,000 retender 2021 and include in Fire alarm testing s will be the
similar streams of work. same stream of works.
Contract expires in 2023, Potential Contract failed due to contractor in administration. New
10066 - Heat Management £654,508 - =P ’ £802,462 contract due to be issued issued 01/01/2021. (estimated
incdices rise after \
amount)
- - Revised internal workforce costs this . e
10067 - Electrical Maintenance £720,256 year. No £740,063 Previous year+2.75% increasze
QJ 10069 - Lifts f368916 Lift Maintenance and safety checks £368,916 Potential rate increase ¥2 of 10% due to contract expiring
(@)
CD Deprecistingvalue due to systems being Deprecisting value due to systems being decomizsioned over a
Oy 10070-Central Call £80,000 R Svstam £75,000 preciatl i
ecomissioned over a period of time. period of time.
[am)
—
Indecies rise of 20% in 2022 as contract Budget remains foryear 1. Increase inyrs 2 -5 due to contract
10071 - Door Entry £13,904 - £13,904 £ ¥ ¥
expiring. expiring.
Indecies rise of 20% in 2022 as contract Contract extension due to Covid - will retender in 2021.
10077 - TV Aerials £80,000 - £80,000 ) . .
Expiring. Potential of rate increases in new contract
Heat meter maintenance. Subsequent years after year 1 will
15237 - Brunata Maintenance £24 000 Heat metering system £40,000 require investment in meter/ battery replacement of systems.
Approximately 13 blocks 3 year st 32k per block
10091 - M&E Response Repairs - i ices- i ices- i i
P P £580,000 Genelralrep?alrsfnr:nmmunal5enr||:es £500,000 General repairs for M&E services - not covered in maintenance
General outside maintenance contracts contracts
10072 - Fire Equipment £15,000 Testing fire equipment £15,000 Current budget amount maintained
Contract far testing fire alarms in blocks Due to Covid Contract extension agreed until 2021. Tender to
10087 - Fire Alarm Testing £76,073 . = £76,073 include smoke vent mainteance [separate smoke vent budget
with alarm system . .
until the end of year 1}
£4,560,017 £4,706,588

31




Appendix A2 HIP

. 1 Year Investment Plan
- Previous
Repairs & .
: year budget Previous year notes Year 1- 2021 to
Budget Setting Notes
Maintenance _20/71 oo g g
Works f Motes f Notes
* New external contract based on Internal ozt element will change once 202122 staffing template
100949 - Response Repairs £10,390 840 Mational Housing Maintenance £10,933,761 iz complete and finance caloulate recharge. 55 savings
Forum [NHF) rates forecast on new material contract.
- Internal cost element will change once 2021122 staffing template
10097 - Relets Repairs £11,948 100 New external contract based on £12 798 830 iz complete and finance caloulate recharge. 55 savings farecast

MHF rates. on new material contract.
Ongoing scheme popular with Ongaing contract cost, Farecast ta budget for 20021, Mewly

—O*457 - Handy Persons scheme £108,000 tenants and costs are dependant £108,000 sllocated to Aezponze Repairs and a review may affect future

Q) on take up. years spend.

8 £22,455,940 £23,340,651

32




Appendix A2 HIP

1 Year Investment Plan

Previous
year budget Previous year notes Year 1 - 2021 to
Budget Setting Notes
-20f1 2022
Works £ Motes £ Motes
Minor works to sites to assist the i i i i irmi
10008 - Caretaking Repairs £41,000 ' ; £41,000 Ta remain asis. Caretaking team working to masimise
caretaking service expenditure.
: : Based on existing demand (demand
10001 - Disabled Adaptations
. P £575,000 led repairs service for existing £575,000 Toremain asis.
Repairs .
adaptations)
One off costs to support estate
. ~ management activity, e.g. 10002 = Internal tree contract 10005 = EM Pepairs. Uplift required
10002 & 10005 Combined £750,000 clearences, fencing, deep cleaning, £270,000 far trees ta cover w agelinereaze and MFT pilat wark. EM repairs
Estate Management day to day emergencies / budget allocation of £120k to remain the zame.
vulnerability issues
o
£866,000 £8B6.000
«Q
@
(@]
N
. 1 Year Investment Plan
Previous
year budget Previous year notes Year 1- 2021 to
Budget Setting Notes
-20/21 2022
Works £ Motes £ Notes
10078 - Charges - Construction Maintained at same level as
£ £111,000 : £115,000 Increased cost
procurement previous years
10090 - Charges - Leaseholder Maintained at same level as
A g -£421,603 : -£421,600 Maintained at same level as previous years
income previous years
-£310,603 -£306,600

33




Appendix A3
HRA Development Programme 2021/22
1. General

Bristol City Council is committed to doing all it can to tackle the housing crisis and is
beginning to build again at a scale not seen for decades.

In October 2018, the government announced the removal of the HRA debt cap, which gave
councils the ability to increase borrowing to develop more affordable homes. The current
development programme has the potential to add 571 new homes to the HRA stock over
the next five years, delivered through various approaches:

e ‘land-led’ schemes (using Council land to bring forward new developments)
e Developer-led’ schemes (e.g. purchase of homes from Developers)

e Property conversions

e Estate regeneration

We continue to prioritise good quality design and will seek to improve the sustainability of
new council homes as we work towards making Bristol a net-zero carbon city. The COVID-19
pandemic has been a reminder of the urgency of providing safe and secure homes for all.
Good quality design will improve the experience of those occupying new affordable homes,
and sustainability requirements will need to ensure that we can build back from the
pandemic in a way that reflects the climate emergency.

Some of the proposed schemes support the city’s ambition to provide new supported
homes for vulnerable rough sleepers. Others demonstrate our commitment to modernising
Bristol’s construction sector and ensuring a more resilient, sustainable and innovative
approach to housebuilding by encouraging greater uptake of Modern Methods of
Construction (MMC).

During 2021 we intend to review and refresh the HRA housing growth and development
strategy with an aim of confirming a long-term development programme in the 2021-22
Budget. A recent, and still ongoing, review of the HRA’s 30-year business plan and
borrowing capacity will provide a basis for agreeing new prudential borrowing metrics and
priority areas for investment.

2. Programme Overview

The 5-year HRA capital programme includes £103.7m for development, with the potential to
deliver up to 571 new council homes, of which £64.8m is earmarked to be committed in
2021/22. The programme includes indicative schemes and unit numbers which may be
subject to change.

Page 63



5-year capital programme

2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 TOTAL

£64.8m £25.8m £8.5m f£4.6m £0.0m £103.7m

The indicative profile for 2021/22 of £64.8m is funded by a combination of BCC investment
supported by sales receipts, the continued use of Right to Buy receipts and new Homes
England grant funding.

The budget and approvals sought in this Cabinet report will provide a framework to shape
and deliver the HRA development programme. It provides delegated authority for the
Executive Director of Growth and Regeneration to execute the programme, move funding
between ‘land-led’ and ‘developer-led’ budgets and to approve individual deals. All such
decisions will be made in consultation with the Section 151 Officer and Cabinet Members
with responsibility for Finance and Housing Delivery.

Sections 3 and 4 below set out schemes that have the potential to be contractually
committed during 2020/21 and 2021/22. There has been considerable work done on the
schemes identified, but the lists remain indicative with decisions yet to be reached and
dependent on strategic fit within our emerging housing growth and development strategy.
All projects will be subject to a full financial appraisal and a scheme specific approval report.
They will also be required to meet agreed investment criteria and achievement of value for
money.

Our current programme has a split of approx. 70:30 between homes for social rent and
shared ownership (part-rent/part-buy).

The main programme assumptions are as follows:

Build Cost £203k/unit (gross) for new build.

Grant £70k/unit for social rent.
£40k/unit for shared ownership.

Social Rent (average rents) £81.24/week for social rent (2020/21 rates)

Shared Ownership Assumed 40% share purchased.
Rent set at between 1.5% and 2% of unsold equity.

The proposed programme will require a range of procured works and services including
construction and professional advisors. We will continue to challenge site preparation and
building costs through effective planning, procurement and contract management.

Page 64



3. ‘Land-led’ Schemes (£24.4m of £64.8m)

The following table lists the land-led schemes with the potential to be on-site during
2021/22:

Scheme Name No.
Lawrence Weston PRC Sites 57
Brunel Ford 32
St Peters EPH 29
Brentry EPH 34

Over the last year we have been looking for opportunities to build more council homes, and
now have an established pipeline of schemes with potential capacity to add up to a further
917 new homes to our stock. Our proposed budget includes funding to continue working up
these schemes in readiness for future delivery, subject to approval.

4. ‘Developer-led' Schemes (£39.5m of £64.8m)

The HRA has secured pre-emption agreements for the affordable housing element on a
number of projects. These schemes are relatively quick to deliver as they are developer-led.
In October 2020, Cabinet gave approval for a £20m ‘New Build Acquisitions Programme’
that aims to deliver 100 new council homes through “developer-led’ schemes.

The following table is an indicative list of the “developer-led’ schemes where negotiations
are ongoing for the purchase of homes by the HRA. Decisions to proceed will be dependent
on agreeable terms and their strategic fit within our overall development plans.

Scheme Name No.
Bonnington Walk 93
Romney Ave 147
East St 8

Brooks Dye Works 24
Little Paradise 21
Cedar House 25
HRA New Build Acquisitions 22

A key consideration in the emerging housing growth and development strategy is the extent
to which the buying homes from developers delivers genuine additionality in terms of the
provision of affordable housing for the city. Investments will need to demonstrate that they
not only deliver improvements to the HRA as a business but that they contribute to
increasing overall supply and are not merely displacing other providers (i.e. Registered
Providers).

Page 65



5. Property Conversions (£0.5m)

We are currently working on a conversions programme of around 15 homes in 2021/22. This
will see redundant spaces and other non-residential accommodation converted into new
affordable homes for social rent. We have programmed for 7 of these homes to complete
during 2021/22.

6. Forward pipeline and estate regeneration (£0.4m)

To help address some of the challenges around housing supply and quality of housing, the
HRA intends to embark upon an estate regeneration programme to provide more and
better quality, homes for the residents of Bristol.

During 2021, as part of the refresh of the HRA housing growth and development strategy
and 30-year business plan, we will carry out option appraisal studies on potential renewal
areas and explore ways in which these can be funded. The core objectives of these are to
look at the long-term future of council homes in Bristol, and they will look at how best to
sustain existing homes in good condition, while achieving the Council’s ambition to provide
more and better homes for the benefit of the people of Bristol.

Page 66



APPENDIX E

Bristol City Council Equality Impact Assessment Form

Name of proposal 2021/22 HRA Budget Proposal
Directorate and Service Area Housing and Landlord Services
Name of Lead Officer Stephen Peacock

Step 1: What is the proposal?

Please explain your proposal in Plain English, avoiding acronyms and jargon. This section
should explain how the proposal will impact service users, staff and/or the wider
community.

1.1 What is the proposal?

To support the recommendations/proposals for:
e The 2021/22 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget
e The 5 year capital programme
e The procurement of relevant contractors to support delivery of these
programmes, and delegate the authority to the Executive Director of Growth and
Regeneration to appoint relevant contractors

Background to the Proposal

Housing and Landlord Services (H&LS) budget focusses on:
e repairing, maintaining and improving the existing BCC council housing stock;
e providing services for council tenants and leaseholders;
e and the provision of new affordable homes

The HRA operates in a difficult housing market and environment. Housing costs are high
as are levels of homelessness and rough sleeping; the council has an aging stock with
high levels of investment need; and many tenants struggle to maintain their tenancies
and access the support they require.

The main source of HRA income is the rent paid by council tenants. For four years rents
have decreased by 1% per year (2019-2019), in line with Government policy. This
significantly reduced expected income levels and resulted in cuts in levels of
expenditure.

From 2020/21 there was a new rent standard that will allow social landlords to increase
rent levels by up to CPl +1%. However, it remains the case that the rent reduction wiped
millions in HRA income.

U
Q)
Q
@
(o))
~




Impact
The key principles for the 2021/22 budget are:
e Rents: no rent increase for 2021/22.
e Repair & Investment of existing homes: Continue to ensure our homes are decent;
warm, weathertight, modern and safe remain key priorities.
e New Homes: commitment to provide new affordable homes in order to meet
housing need, and address homelessness and rough sleeping.

Procurement of Contractors

The report request approval for delegated authority to procure contractors as necessary
to support the delivery of proposed expenditure (including the Housing Investment Plan
and New Build & Acquisition programme). This is a positive impact for the council and
our tenants, as this proposal aims to make the procurement of contractors more
efficient, meaning work programmes can be started earlier without the need for further
approvals which can add additional costs to the budget.

Step 2: What information do we have?

Decisions must be evidence-based, and involve people with protected characteristics
that could be affected. Please use this section to demonstrate understanding of who
could be affected by the proposal.

2.1 What data or evidence is there which tells us who is, or could be affected?

Demographic of tenants:

These figures are as at November 2020:

H&LS has 30,620 tenants living in 26,372 properties. It is estimated that in total H&LS

houses over 60,000 people. In addition, there are 2185 leaseholders leasing 1715

properties.

e The ethnicity of 93.17% of tenants is known, of those: 74.2% are White British
(reduction from 77.2% in April 2017), 21.4% are Black and Minority Ethnicity, of
which the largest groups are Black Africans and African Somalis (4.9% and 4.5%
respectively) and 4.5% identify as White Other.

e A higher proportion of our tenants are female, 62.7%, than male, 37.3%.

e The age of 98.8% of tenants is known; of these the most common age band is 45-54
year olds who are 21.1% of our tenants. 23.7% of our tenants are aged over 65 and
2.2% under 25

e 29.9% of our tenants have told us that they have at least one type of disability.
12.9% of our tenants report a long-term illness, 12.1% suffer from mental or
emotional distress and 11.8% of our tenants report mobility problems.

e When compared to the Bristol population as a whole (The Population of Bristol
2020) the differences include:

o Older people, aged 65+, make up 13% of Bristol’s population compared to
24% of BCC tenants
o Women make up 50% of Bristol’ Qapel88n compared to 62.6% of BCC




tenants
o Non White British people make up 22% of Bristol’s population compared to
25.8% of BCC tenants.

Rent Arrears
Overall, 23.8% of tenants have rent arrears over £250. This has increased compared to
previous years, at least partly due to the impact of Covid-19.

e 32.0% of tenants from Black or minority ethnicity backgrounds have rent arrears

over £250, compared to 21.5% of White British tenants and 21.1% of White
Other tenants.

e 25.1% of female tenants are in arrears over £250 compared to 21.4% of male
tenants.

e Younger tenants are at higher risk of arrears than older tenants. 40.0% of under
25’s are in arrears over £250. 6.5% of tenants aged 65-74 are.

e Tenants with a recorded disability are less likely to be in arrears with 16.4% of
them having rent arrears over £250. (This is likely to be because having
disabilities is associated with being elderly and older tenants are less at risk of
falling into arrears).

e Tenants identifying as White British/White European were most likely to be
satisfied that their rent represented value for money, giving an average score of
8.2 out of 10. Tenants identifying as Asian were least likely to be satisfied that
their Rent provided value for money, giving an average score of 7.6 out of 10.
(Source: Resident Satisfaction Survey 2019).

Response Repairs

In the year 1st November 2019- 31st October 2020 63,341 response repairs were
completed after being requested by a tenant, an average of 2.1 per tenant. Note this
figure may be lower compared to previous years due to the impact of the lockdown.

Younger tenants were more likely to order repairs than middle-aged tenants, with
16-24 year olds receiving an average of 2.6 repair requests per tenant and over 65’s
receiving an average of 1.7 repairs per tenant.

Black and minority ethnic tenants (on average 2.8 repairs per tenant) were more
likely to order repairs than White British tenants (on average 1.9 repairs per tenant)
or White Other tenants (1.6 repairs per tenant).

Disabled tenants (2.2 repairs per tenant) were slightly more likely to request repairs
than non-disabled tenants (2.0 repairs per tenant) The disability group with the
most repair requests were wheelchair users (2.4 repairs per tenant) The group least
like to request repairs were those with long-term illnesses (2.1 repairs per tenant).
Tenants identifying as Black or African were the most satisfied with how BCC deals
with Repairs and Maintenance, giving an average score of 7.0 out of 10. Tenants
identifying as mixed race were the least satisfied giving an average score of 6.5.

The group most satisfied with the overall quality of their home were White British
tenants who gave an average score of 7.3 out of 10. Mixed ethnicity tenants were
the least satisfied giving an average score of 6.8, (Source: Resident Survey 2019).

Page 69




2.2 Who is missing? Are there any gaps in the data?

There are some gaps in diversity data relating to customer satisfaction levels, but work
is in hand to address this.

2.3 How have we involved, or will we involve, communities and groups that could be
affected?

Various methods will be used to communicate with our key stakeholders and involve
them in our service transformation plans for 2020/21, some of which are listed below:
e Utilise existing groups set up to involve and engage with tenants (Service user
groups, Local Housing Forums and Housing Management Board)
e Further engagements / equality impact assessment on specific work activities
including future policy changes and strategy development
e Co-design of service improvements with tenants and leaseholders

Step 3: Who might the proposal impact?

3.1 Does the proposal have any potentially adverse impacts on people with protected
characteristics?

We have not identified any significant negative impact from the proposal.
There are no proposals to reduce housing management services or responsive repairs,
planned maintenance or investment.

3.2 Can these impacts be mitigated or justified? If so, how?

We will create a communication plan, utilising accessible forms of communication, to
advice tenants of the rent decision. We will continue to signpost and refer tenants for
debt and financial support.

3.3 Does the proposal create any benefits for people with protected characteristics?

This proposal does have some benefits for our tenants in the following ways:

e Repair & Investment: continue to focus on our priorities previously identified by
tenants including providing warm and reducing fuel poverty, ensuring homes are
safe and on key elements such as kitchens. This benefits older and disabled tenants
for whom the cold may be a particular issue, and recognises that many of the
protected characteristic groups are more likely to live below the poverty line.

e New Homes: Women, Black and minority ethnic people, and disabled households
are overrepresented as both household seeking homelessness prevention advice
and on the housing register. Addressing housing needs by providing more homes is
therefore beneficial in addressing inequalities. In addition new homes bring in a
new income stream, safeguarding future income and service provision for all
tenants.

e Service provision: continue to focus on provision of low cost housing that supports
tenants and focusses services on the most vulnerable whilst considering impacts on
estates and neighbourhoods.

e Procurement of Contractors: The city council tendering process will assess potential
contractors on a range of factors inclu%@vyﬁhey bring social value and the level




of customer care offered.

3.4 Can they be maximised? If so, how?

There will be opportunities throughout 2021/22 to engage further with tenants to
explore standards and opportunities to shape our longer term vision and priorities for
utilising Housing Revenue Account income.

Step 4: So what?

The Equality Impact Assessment must be able to influence the proposal and decision.
This section asks how your understanding of impacts on people with protected
characteristics has influenced your proposal, and how the findings of your Equality
Impact Assessment can be measured going forward.

4.1 How has the equality impact assessment informed or changed the proposal?

The equalities impact assessment has reinforced existing knowledge that service
provision is not always able to respond flexibly and effectively to the different needs of
groups with protected characteristics. Focussing on maximising income, improving
services and increasing the provision of homes is a targeted approach to addressing
inequalities.

4.2 What actions have been identified going forward?

e Maximise rental income to enable future improvements

e |dentify homes that are poor performing (require high levels of future investment
and/or have low levels of tenant satisfaction) and carry out option appraisal
regarding their future.

4.3 How will the impact of your proposal and actions be measured moving forward?

e Key Performance Indicators will be used to monitor the contractor’s performance.

e Monitor the complaints and identify systemic failures

e Continue to collect asset intelligence, proactive surveys, identify urgent priorities,
assess information and feed into investment plan to ensure we have good sound
knowledge and data of our homes.

e Carry out ongoing equalities monitoring and impact assessments for specific projects.

Service Director Sign-Off: Equalities Officer Sign Off:
Stephen Peacock Reviewed by Equality and Inclusion Team
Date: 18/12/2020 Date: 9/12/2020

Page 71




Eco Impact Checklist

Title of report: Housing Revenue Account 2020/21 Budget Proposals

Report author: Sarah Spicer

Anticipated date of key decision Cabinet 26" January 2021.

Summary of proposals: This cabinet report sets out the proposals for the 2020/21 Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) budget; which have been tested within the 30-year financial
business plan model and which will ultimately form part of the council’s overall budget for

heating systems will reduce
emissions.

Emissions of climate changing
gases will also arise through the
use of energy, transport fuel and
materials during works.

2020/21.

Will the Yes/ | +ivel|lf Yes...

proposal No or Briefly describe impact Briefly describe Mitigation
impact on... -ive measures

Emission of |Yes |Both|A number of the proposals Where practicable, works
Climate contained within this budget delivered under these budget
Changing such as installing loft and cavity |proposals will:

Gases? wall insulation and tackling poor

e Use sustainable construction
materials

e Use local resources and
materials

e Reduce the energy used
during works

e Reduce the travel impacts
associated with works

e Reduce emissions of climate
changing gases by improving
the energy efficiency of
council homes and reducing
consumption of fossil fuels.

A-rated windows will be specified
unless any additional cost is
considered unacceptable.

Introducing carbon accounting
will be considered as part of the
Asset Management Strategy, to
contribute to the council’s 2025
carbon neutrality goal and the
city’s 2030 carbon neutrality goal.
This would involve applying a
carbon cost to purchased goods
(e.g. grams of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions per cubic
metre of softwood timber
purchased using established
databases, such as the ICE
database. Carbon reductions

Version 5. Last modified on 20/07/2015 Page 72




from installed measures could
also be counted (e.g. per cubic
metre of insulation material fitted,
or cavity wall insulation fitted per
2 bedroom home).

Bristol’s Yes |+ive Improvements to energy and Consideration will be given to the
resilience to water efficiency will improve use of tap designs that will
the effects of Bristol’s resilience to fuel improve resilience to disability or
climate scarcity & drought. pandemics, as well as reducing
change? water consumption, as part of the
Asset Management Strategy.
Consumption -ive |Fossil fuels and other non- All construction materials
of non- renewable materials and covered by the BRE Green Guide
renewable products will be used in the to Specification must be rated B
resources? works delivered by these or above unless there are
budget proposals. significant technical or financial
reasons why this cannot be
achieved. Equivalent ranking
+ive | Improvements to energy schemes will be considered.
efficiency will improve Bristol’s
resilience to fuel scarcity & All timber and wood-derived
reduce fossil fuel consumption. |products for supply or use in
performance of the works
Improvements to water delivered under this budget must
efficiency through replacement |be from independently verifiable
bathrooms will improve Bristol’s |legal and sustainable sources as
resilience to drought. defined by UK Government
guidance.
Water efficient products such as
showers, dual flush toilets and
low flow taps will be specified
where appropriate.
Durable and recyclable materials
and components will be specified
where appropriate.
Responsive repairs volumes will
be monitored to ensure
maintenance and replacement
cycles are at an appropriate level.
Production, -ive |Waste will arise during the Contractors and Direct Labour
recycling or delivery of the works delivered |will be required to take
disposal of by this budget. responsibility for their waste,
waste including adhering to the waste

duty of care and waste hierarchy
by:

Version 5. Last modified on 20/07/2015 Page 73




e Reducing waste

e Reusing waste where legal
and practicable

e Using products which are
readily recyclable.

e Recycling as much waste as
possible

Hazardous wastes will be stored
and disposed of in a legally
compliant manner.

Where appropriate contract
documents will promote the
recycling of scrap metal, with any
income returning to Bristol City
Council.

The Yes |May The 2019/20 budget contains a |External maintenance works to
appearance be |range works which will help Council Housing will aim to
of the city? +ive | maintain the external improve the appearance of
appearance of existing Council |existing council housing.
Housing and HRA land.
Durable materials which maintain
It is hoped that new build homes appearance will be
council housing will enhance specified where practicable.
the appearance of the city.
New build homes will be subject
to the planning process.
Pollution to -ive |Works delivered under this Contractors and Direct Labour
land, water, budget are likely to involve the |will be required to work in
or air? use and storage of materials accordance with all relevant

that could contaminate land,
watercourses and surface water
drains, if accidentally released.

Works are likely to create dust
and noise.

Transport to deliver works will
create air pollution.

regulatory guidance and also
ensure appropriate procedures
and equipment are in place to:

e Securely store any potentially
polluting materials and keep
them away from watercourses
and surface water drains.

e Avoid washing out containers
of paint and similar materials
into drains.

e Ensure correct foul sewer
connections are made, rather
than to storm drains.

e Reduce dust.

Reduce noise pollution.

e Contain any spills.

Version 5. Last modified on 20/07/2015 Page 74




Homes and Landlord Services
will continue to build on previous
progress made to programme
works in a manner which reduces
the transport impacts of staff and
contractors.

Wildlife and
habitats?

-ive

It is possible for works and
construction materials
associated with this budget to:

e Impact upon legally protect-
ed species or habitats

e Impact on priority species or
habitats

e Remove or damage trees.

Timber must be used in
accordance with the above
requirements.

Where works have the potential
to disturb protected species or
impact upon their habitat,
guidance from a suitably
experienced and qualified
ecological consultant will be
sought and followed at the
earliest opportunity.

Any works requiring Planning
Permission will be reviewed by a
Council Ecologist as part of the
Planning process.

Wherever possible existing trees
will be retained and works affect-
ing these trees will be undertaken
in accordance with “BS 5837:
Trees in relation to design, demo-
lition and construction — Recom-
mendations”

Consideration will be given to
enhancing biodiversity with a tar-
get to achieve biodiversity net
gain as part of the Asset Man-
agement Strategy. This means
that HRA activities will result in
more biodiversity than previously
existed. This is a goal in the One
City Ecological Emergency Strat-
egy and is currently included in
the Environment Bill.

Consideration will be given to in-
troducing a target to reduce pes-
ticide use by at least 50% as part
of the Asset Management Strate-

Version 5. Last modified on 20/07/2015 Page 75




gy. Thisis a goal in the One City
Ecological Emergency Strategy

Consulted with: Nicola Hares

Summary of impacts and Mitigation - to go into the main Cabinet/ Council Report

The significant impacts of this proposal are...

Works delivered under this budget will result in the consumption of non-renewable resources,
production of climate changing emissions and production of waste. Works also create the
potential for both direct and indirect impacts on wildlife and habitats.

Some works delivered under this budget such as loft and cavity insulation have the potential
for reducing consumption of fossil fuels and emissions of greenhouse gases.

The proposals include the following measures to mitigate the impacts...

A number of mitigation measures are included in the main ECO Impact Checklist which
accompanies this Cabinet Report. In addition, the following mitigation measures will also be
implemented:

- A Sustainability Appraisal will be completed as part of any procurement process.

- Homes and Landlord Services will liaise with BCC’s Environmental Performance team
during the development of specifications etc.

- Continuously improving asset intelligence will be used to target works where most
required on housing stock.

- Consideration will be given to introducing a number of measures as part of a review of the
Asset Management Strategy. These include carbon accounting and a biodiversity net gain
target.

The net effects of the proposals are:
Overall positive provided the mitigation measures outlined in this ECO Impact Checklist are
successfully implemented.

Checklist completed by:

Name: Sarah Spicer

Department: Homes and Landlord Services

Extension: 077690280187

Date: 11/01/2020

Verified by Giles Liddell (Project Manager — Environmental)
Environmental Performance Team

Version 5. Last modified on 20/07/2015 Page 76




	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Chair
	2 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	Note for Members of the Public

	5 Call-in of Cabinet Decision
	5a Procedure at the meeting
	5b Call-in Proforma
	5c Cabinet Decision Record
	5d Cabinet Report - Housing Revenue Account Budget Report
	Appendix A1 HRA Budget, 03/02/2021 Cabinet
	Appendix A2 HIP, 03/02/2021 Cabinet
	Appendix A3 HRA Development Programme, 03/02/2021 Cabinet
	Appendix E EqIA HRA budget, 03/02/2021 Cabinet
	Appendix F ECO Checklist, 03/02/2021 Cabinet


